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NOTICE 

 
NOTICE is hereby given that the 41st Annual General Meeting of the Members of SWADESHI   INDUSTRIES AND 
LEASING LIMITED (CIN: L46309MH1983PLC031246) will be held on Saturday, 27th September, 2025 at 3.30 
PM IST. at the Registered Office of the Company at 303, Apollo Arcade, Prem Co-op Soc Ltd, R.K. Singh Marg, 
Mogra Pada, Andheri East, Mumbai 400069 to transact the following business: 
 
ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

1) To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements and the reports of the Board of Directors and 
Auditors thereon for the financial year ended on 31st March 2025. 

SPECIAL BUSINESS 

2) To consider and approve the regularization of Additional Directors 

3) To consider and approve alteration of Memorandum of Association 

 

 
BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
For SWADESHI INDUSTRIES AND LEASING LIMITED 
 
Sd/- 
___________________________ 
Lalkrishna Sharma 
DIN: 09527277 
Director 
 
Date: 04.09.2024 
Place: Mumbai 

NOTES: 
 

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THIS ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (AGM) IS 
ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY OR PROXIES TO ATTEND AND VOTE, INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/ 
HERSELF AND A PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. 
 
A person can act as proxy on behalf of members not exceeding 50 (fifty) and holding in aggregate notmore than
 10% ofthe total paid up capital of the Company. A member holding more than 10% of 
the total share capital of the Companycarrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such pers
on shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder. 

 
2. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Register of the Company will remain closed from Saturday, 20th   

September, 2025 to Friday 27th September, 2025 (both days inclusive). 
 

3. Institutional / Corporate Shareholders (i.e. other than individuals / HUF, NRI, etc.) are required to send scanned 
copy (PDF/JPG Format) of its Board or governing body resolution/authorization etc., authorizing its 
representative to attend the AGM on its behalf and to vote during the meeting. The said resolution/authorization 
shall be sent to the Scrutinizers by email through its registered email address with a copy marked to the 
Company. 

 
4. The relevant details, pursuant to Regulation 26(4) and 36(3) of the SEBI Listing Regulations and Secretarial 

Standards on General Meeting issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, in respect of Directors 
seeking appointment / re-appointment at this Meeting are provided in the “Annexure” to the Notice. 

 
5. Electronic copy of the Annual Report 2024-2025, inter alia, indicating the process and manner of e-voting along 

with Attendance Slip and Proxy Form is being sent to all the members whose email IDs are registered with the 
Company/ Depository Participant(s) for communication purposes unless any member has requested for a hard 
copy of the same. For members who have not registered their email address, physical copies of the Notice of the 
Annual Report 2024-2025, inter alia, indicating the process and manner of e-voting along with Attendance Slip 
and Proxy Form is being sent in the physical mode. 

 
6. The route map for venue of the meeting is annexed to this notice. 

 



 

  

 

7. As per Regulation 40 of SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended, securities of listed companies can be 
transferred only in dematerialized from with effect from 1st April, 2019, except in case of request received for 
transmission or transposition of securities. In view of this and to eliminate all risks associated with physical 
shares and for ease of portfolio management, members holding shares in physical form are requested to 
consider converting their holding to dematerialized form. 

8. Members can contact the Company or Company’s Registrars and Transfer Agents, MUFG Intime India Private 
Limited (Formerly Link Intime India Private Limited), for assistance in this regard. Members may also refer to 
Frequently Asked Questions (“FAQs”) on Company’s website: www.swadeshiglobal.com. 
 

9. The Members are requested to: 

1) Intimate any change in their address to the Registrars and Transfer Agents, MUFG Intime India Private 
Limited (Formerly Link Intime India Private Limited), C-101, 1st Floor, 247 Park, Lal Bahadur Shastri Marg, 
Vikhroli (West), Mumbai- 400083. 

2) Quote their Folio No. /Client ID No. in their correspondence with the Company/Registrar and Share Transfer 
Agents. 

3) Send their queries at least 10 days in advance so that the required information can be made available at the 
meeting. 

4) Intimate Registrar and Share Transfer Agents M/s. MUFG Intime India Private Limited (Formerly Link 
Intime India Private Limited) for consolidation of  their folios, in case they are having more than one folio. 
 

10. In case of joint holders, the Members whose name appears as the first holder in the order of names as per the 
Register of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote at the AGM. 

 
11. The Company has engaged the services of the National Securities Depository Limited (“NSDL”) for facilitating 

remote e-voting for the said meeting to be held on 27th September 2025. The Shareholders are requested to 
follow the instructions mentioned in Note below. 

 
12. The Company is supporting “Green Initiative in Corporate Governance”, a step taken by the Ministry of 

Corporate Affairs wherein the service of various documents including Notice, Directors’ Report, Annual 
Accounts and various correspondences by a Company can be made through electronic mode which shall also be 
following the provisions of Section 20 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 
Supporting this initiative, the Company sends its Annual Report to the members whose email ids are available 
in electronic form. To support this initiative in full measure, Members who have not registered their email 
address with the Depository through their concerned Depository Participants (DPs) are requested to register the 
same with their DPs. Members who hold shares in physical form are requested to register their email address 
with M/s MUFG Intime India Private Limited (Formerly Link Intime India Private Limited), C/101,247 Park, 
LBS Marg, Vikhroli (West), Mumbai - 400 083. 
 
In case you desire to receive the documents mentioned above in physical form or register or change your email 
address, you are requested to send an e-mail to swadeshiindltd@gmail.com 
 

13. In terms of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended by the Companies (Management and Administration) Amendment 
Rules, 2015 and Regulation 44 of the Listing Regulations, the Company is pleased to provide members facility 
to exercise their right to vote on resolution proposed to be considered at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) by 
electronic means and the business may be transacted through e-voting services. 
The Company is providing the facility of casting votes through the electronic voting system (e-voting) under an 
arrangement with the NSDL National Securities Depositories Limited (NSDL). 
 

14. The members shall note that the facility for voting shall also be provided at the meeting through polling paper 
and the members attending the meeting who have not cast their vote by remote e-voting shall be able to exercise 
their voting rights at the meeting. If the members have already cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the 
meeting they may attend the meeting but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again and his vote, if any, cast at 
the meeting shall be treated as invalid. 

 
15. The voting by Shareholders through the remote e-voting shall commence at 9.00 a.m. on Wednesday 24th 

September, 2025 and shall close at 5.00 p.m. on Friday, 26th September, 2024. During this period, Members 
holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on Saturday 20th September, 202 i.e. cut-off 
date, may cast their vote electronically. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting 
thereafter. Those Members, who will be present in the Meeting and have not cast their vote on the Resolution 
through remote e-voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote during the 
Meeting. 
 



 

  

 

16. Voting rights shall be reckoned on the paid-up value of shares registered in the name of the Member / beneficial 
owner as on the cut-off date i.e. Saturday 20th September, 2025. 
 

17. The Members whose names appear in the Register of Members / list of beneficial owners as on the cut-off date 
i.e. Saturday 20th September, 2025 only shall be entitled to vote on the resolutions set out in this Notice. Any 
person who is not a Member as on the cut-off date should treat this Notice for information purposes only. 
 

18. Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and become member of the Company after emailing of the 
notice and holding shares as of the cut-off date i.e 29th August, 2025 may obtain the login ID and password by 
sending a request at email ID evoting@nsdl.co.in or RTA email ID ashok.sherugar@linkintime.co.in 

 
19. However, if you are already registered with NSDL for remote e-voting then you can use your existing user ID 

and password for casting your vote. If you forgot your password, you can reset your password by using “Forgot 
User Details/Password” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com or contact at the following toll-free no.: 
1800-222-990. 
 

20. Any queries/ grievances in relation to the voting by e-voting may be addressed to the Company Secretary of the 
Company through email at compliance@swadeshiglobal.com, or may be addressed to NSDL at 
evoting.nsdl.co.in. 
 

21. The Board of Directors has appointed Mr. Simit Sanjay Parekh (Membership No. 45949, C.P. NO. 20336) M/s. 
Simit S Parekh & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the voting during 
the AGM and remote e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner. 

 
22. Instructions for e-Voting and joining the AGM are as follows: 

 
A. VOTING THROUGH ELECTRONIC MEANS 
 
The remote e-voting period begins on 9.00 a.m. on Wednesday 24th September, 2025 and shall close at 5.00 
p.m. on Friday, 26th September, 2025. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting 
thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / Beneficial Owners as on the record 
date (cut-off date) i.e. 20th September 2025, may cast their vote electronically. The voting right of shareholders 
shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, 
being 20th September 2025. 
 
The details of the process and manner for remote e-Voting are explained herein below: 

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 
The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below: 
 

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 
A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in 
demat mode 
 
In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual 
shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with 
Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in 
their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 
 
Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 
 
 

Type of shareholders  Login Method 
Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat 
mode with NSDL. 

1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. 
https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 
On the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under 
“Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section , this will prompt you 
to enter your existing User ID and Password. After successful 
authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services under Value 
added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services 
and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-
Voting service provider i.e. NSDLand you will be re-directed to e-
Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting 



 

  

 

period Ifyou are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is 
available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for 
IDeAS Portal” or click at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 
2. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 

following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is 
launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will 
have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account 
number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as 
shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be 
redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting 
page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. 
NSDLand you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for 
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period.  

3. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App 
“NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below 
for seamless voting experience. 

 
Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat 
mode with CDSL 

1. Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, they can login 
through their user id and password. Option will be made available to 
reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. The URL for 
users to login to Easi / Easiest are 
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/loginor www.cdslindia.com 
and click on New System Myeasi. 

2. After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be also able to see 
the E Voting Menu. The Menu will have links of e-Voting service 
provider i.e. NSDL. Click on NSDL to cast your vote. 

3. If the user is not  registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is 
available at 
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing 
demat Account Number and PAN No. from a link in 
www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the user 
by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the 
demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be provided 
links for the respective ESP i.e. NSDL where the e-Voting is in 
progress. 

Individual Shareholders 
(holding securities in demat 
mode) login through their 
depository participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through 
your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. 
upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting 
option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful 
authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name 
or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting 
website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period  

 



 

  

 

 
 
 
Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and 
Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 
 
Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to 
login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 
 
 

Login type Helpdesk details 
Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with NSDL Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL 

helpdesk by sending a request at  evoting@nsdl.co.inor call at toll 
+91 22 48867000 and +91 22 24997000  

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with CDSL Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL 

helpdesk by sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or 
contact at contact at toll free no. 1800225533  

 
 

 
B) Login Method for e-Voting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding securities in 
demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode. 
 
How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 
 

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available 
under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification 
Code as shown on the screen. 

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices 
after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your 
vote electronically. 

4. Your User ID details are given below : 
 

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat (NSDL or 
CDSL) or Physical 

 Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares in demat account 
with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID 
For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID 
is 12****** then your user ID is IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold shares in demat account 
with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 
For example if your Beneficiary ID is 
12************** then your user ID is 
12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in Physical Form. EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered 
with the company 
For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 
101456 then user ID is 101456001*** 

 

 
5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:  

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login and 
cast your vote. 

 
b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial 

password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need 
to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to change your password. 

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 
(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial 

password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from 
NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. 
Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for 



 

  

 

NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares 
held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.  

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for 
those shareholders whose email ids are not registered. 

 
6.  If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have forgotten your 

password: 
a)  Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account with 

NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on 

www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at 

evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name 
and your registered address etc. 

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-
Voting system of NSDL. 

 
7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box. 
8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 
9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 

 
 
Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system 
 
 

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system? 

 

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are holding 
shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status. 

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period and casting 
your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on “VC/OAVM” link 
placed under “Join General Meeting”. 

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for 
which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted. 

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.  

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation page. 

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

General Guidelines for shareholders 
1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy 

(PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature of 
the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to 
sanjayrd65@gmail.com  with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in.Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than 
individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter etc. 
by clicking on "Upload Board Resolution / Authority Letter" displayed under "e-Voting" tab in their login. 

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your 
password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in 
the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or 
“Physical User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.  

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voting 
user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free 
no.: 1800 1020 990  and  1800 22 44 30  or send a request to (Name of NSDL Official) at evoting@nsdl.co.in 



 

  

 

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for procuring user id and 
password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set out in this notice: 
 

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of 
the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self 
attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to compliance@swadeshiglobal.com. 
 

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit 
beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self attested 
scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to 
(compliance@swadeshiglobal.com). If you are an Individual shareholders holding securities in demat 
mode, you are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e.Login method for e-
Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode. 
 

3. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.infor procuring user id and 
password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents. 

 
4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, 

Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account 
maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update their mobile 
number and email ID correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voting facility. 

  



 

  

 

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 IN 
RESPECT OF THE SPECIAL BUSINESS TO BE TRANSACTED AT THE FORTY FIRST ANNUAL 
GENERAL MEETING OF THE MEMBERS OF SWADESHI INSUTRIES & LEASING LIMITED TO BE 
HELD ON SATURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 27, 2025. 

 
ITEM NO 2:  

 
The Board of Directors of the Company, on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, had 
appointed Mr. Lalkrishna Sharma (DIN: 09527277), Mrs. Jayshree Radheshyam Sharma (DIN: 02754812) and Mr. Nitesh 
Kumar (DIN: 09825886) as Additional Directors of the Company with effect from October 29, 2024 in accordance with 
the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Articles of Association of the Company. 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 161 of the Act, Mr. Lalkrishna Sharma (DIN: 09527277), Mrs. Jayshree Radheshyam 
Sharma (DIN: 02754812) and Mr. Nitesh Kumar (DIN: 09825886) holds office as Additional Directors up to the date of 
the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The Company has received a notice in writing from a member under Section 160 of 
the Act proposing the candidature of Mr. Lalkrishna Sharma (DIN: 09527277), Mrs. Jayshree Radheshyam Sharma (DIN: 
02754812) and Mr. Nitesh Kumar (DIN: 09825886) for the office of Directors. 
 
The Board is of the view that the appointment of Mr. Lalkrishna Sharma (DIN: 09527277), Mrs. Jayshree Radheshyam 
Sharma (DIN: 02754812) and Mr. Nitesh Kumar (DIN: 09825886) will be in the interest of the Company and therefore 
recommends the resolution set out in Item No. 2 of the Notice for approval of the members. 
 
None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives to the extent of his/her 
appointment, is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution. 

 
ITEM NO 3:  

 
The existing Object Clause of the Memorandum of Association of the Company does not specifically cover the all 
proposed activities of the Company. In order to enable the Company to undertake and pursue the said new line of business 
activities, it is proposed to alter the Memorandum of Association of the Company by inserting suitable clauses under 
Clause III (Objects Clause) of the MOA. 
 
The Board of Directors is of the view that the proposed alteration will enable the Company to pursue new growth 
opportunities, diversify its operations, and enhance long-term shareholder value. 
 
Pursuant to Section 13 of the Companies Act, 2013, alteration of the Object Clause of the MOA requires the approval of 
the members by way of a Special Resolution. 
 
Accordingly, the Board recommends the Special Resolution set out in Item No. 3 of the Notice for approval of the 
members. 
 
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company, and their relatives are, in any way, concerned or 
interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution. 

 
 
For SWADESHI INDUSTRIES AND LEASING LIMITED 

sd/- 

_______________ 
Lalkrishna Sharma  
Director   
DIN: 09527277 
Date: 04.09.2025 
Place: Mumbai 
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Form No. MGT-11 
Proxy form 

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014] 

CIN L46309MH1983PLC031246 
Name of the company SWADESHI INDUSTRIES AND LEASING LIMITED 
Registered office 303, Apollo Arcade, R K Singh Marg, Andheri East, Mumbai – 400069 
Name of the member (s)  
Registered address  
E-mail Id  
Folio No/ Client Id  DP ID  

 
I/We, being the member (s) of ……………………. shares of the above named company, hereby appoint 

Name  
Address  
E-mail Id  Signature  

OR FAILING HIM  
Name  
Address  
E-mail Id  Signature  

OR FAILING HIM  
Name  
Address  
E-mail Id  Signature  

 
as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 41st Annual General 
Meeting of the shareholders of Swadeshi Industries & Leasing Limited (CIN-L46309MH1983PLC031246) 
will be held on Saturday, 27th September, 2025 at 303, Apollo Arcade, Prem Co-op Soc Ltd, R.K. Singh Marg, 
Mogra Pada, Andheri East, Mumbai 400069 at 3.30 p.m. at and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such 
resolutions as are indicated below: 
 
       

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements and the reports of the Board of Directors 
and Auditors thereon for the financial year ended on 31st March 2025. 
2. To consider and approve the regularization of Additional Directors 

3. To consider and approve alteration of Memorandom of Associations 
 

 
Signed this…………… day of……………… 2025 
           
 
Signature of Shareholder: ………........................... /  
Signature of Proxy holder(s): ………………………………  
 
 
 
Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office 
of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Affix 
Revenue 
Stamp 
 



SWADESHI INDUSTRIES AND LEASING LIMITED 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 
SWADESHI INDUSTRIES AND LEASING LIMITED  

Regd. Office: 303, Apollo Arcade, Prem Co-op Soc Ltd, R.K. Singh Marg, Mogra Pada, Andheri East, Mumbai 
400069 

CIN: L46309MH1983PLC031246 
Email: compliance@swadeshiglobal.com Website: www.swadeshiglobal.com 

 
ATTENDANCE SLIP 

 
Please fill Attendance Slip and hand it over at the entrance of the meeting hall. Joint shareholders may obtain 
additional Attendance Slip on request. 
 
Master Folio No.: ________________________      No. of Shares held: ____________________ 
 
DP ID: __________________________________     Client ID: _____________________________ 
 
Mr./Ms./Mrs.:_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Address: 
________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________ 
 
I/We record my/our presence at the 41st Annual General Meeting to be held on Saturday, 27th September, 2025 at 3.30 
P.M. at the Registered office of the Company at 303, Apollo Arcade, Prem Co-op Soc Ltd, R.K. Singh Marg, Mogra 
Pada, Andheri East, Mumbai 400069. 
 

 
 
_________________________________                   ________________________________ 
(Proxy’s Name in Block letters)    (Member’s /Proxy’s Signature#) 
 
# Strike out whichever is not applicable 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  



SWADESHI INDUSTRIES AND LEASING LIMITED 

 

 

 

 
Form No. MGT-12 

Polling Paper 
 

[Pursuant to section 109(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 21(1)(c) of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014] 

 
CIN L46309MH1983PLC031246 

 
Name of the Company SWADESHI INDUSTRIES AND LEASING LTD 

 
Registered Office 303, Apollo Arcade, Prem Co-op Soc Ltd, R.K. Singh Marg, Mogra Pada, 

Andheri East, Mumbai 400069 
 

BALLOT PAPER 
Sr. 
No. 

Particulars Details 

1. Name of the First Name Shareholder 
/proxy/Authorised Representative 

 

2. Postal Address 
 

 

3. Registered folio No. /Client Id NO.   
 

4. Class of Share  
 

 
Class of the Meeting 41st Annual General Meeting 

 
Time of the Meeting 3:30 P.M 

 
Day & Date of the Meeting Saturday, 27th September 2025 

 
Venue of the Meeting 303, Apollo Arcade, Prem Co-op Soc Ltd, R.K. Singh Marg, Mogra Pada, 

Andheri East, Mumbai 400069 
 
I hereby exercise my vote in respect of Ordinary/ Special resolution enumerated below by recording my assent or dissent 
to the said resolution in the following manner:  
 

 

Sr. 
No. 

Item No. Number of 
Shares 

Assent  Dissent  

1 To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements and 
the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon for the 
financial year ended on 31st March, 2025. 

   

2 To consider and approve the regularization of Additional Directors     

4 To consider and approve alteration of Memorandom of Associations    

 
 

__________________________________ 
(Signature of the shareholder/proxy/Authorised Representative) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

  

 

 

                                                 DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

                                                         [(Disclosure under Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013) 
           {Read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014}] 

Dear Share Holder. 

We are proud to announce that your Company is planning Acquire Swadeshi Agrotech Industries Private Limited 
for Manufacturing of Non-Preservative Foods by establishing its own Foods Park consisting more than 160 
Products in Single Food Park and Company is planning to install at 100 Fod Park in next Five Years spread over 
entire Country. The outlook for non-preservative food manufacturing is highly positive, driven by strong consumer 
demand for clean-label, health-conscious products, growing awareness of synthetic chemical risks, and supportive 
technological advancements.  

Key drivers include increased income, urbanization, and e-commerce penetration, all contributing to a growing 
market for foods with natural ingredients and minimal processing. Opportunities exist for manufacturers to 
differentiate products, innovate with natural ingredients, and leverage the growing demand for packaged and 
convenient, yet healthy, food options accordingly your Company has bright Future.  

The Company has started the business of manufacturing of Non-Ferrous Metals specifically Copper, Brass and 
Aluminium with a keen understanding of the industry and its operations. We has also Appointed Mr. Naresh 
Poonam Chand Jain as CEO of Copper Division who has  invaluable prudence further created a group of 
entrepreneurs and professionals who have acquired sufficient expertise in the field of copper and copper alloy 
products manufacturing and sales. The business outlook for copper manufacturing in India is strongly positive, 
driven by increasing domestic demand from infrastructure, renewable energy, and the burgeoning electric vehicle 
sector. Despite significant import dependency for raw materials, the industry is benefiting from government 
initiatives like the "Make in India" program and substantial private investments in mining and refining. Key trends 
include robust domestic demand growth, expansion of production capacity, a focus on technological 
advancements, and a growing emphasis on sustainability. 

We are also Planning to Launch the Manufacturing of womens and Kids wears as the outlook for affordable 
women's and kids' wear manufacturing in India is positive, driven by increasing disposable incomes, rising demand 
for stylish yet affordable options, and a large, growing consumer base. Key success factors include offering 
fashionable, quality products, leveraging e-commerce and social media for reach, focusing on comfortable and 
potentially sustainable materials, and building strong supply chains. Challenges involve competition from fast 
fashion and the need to adapt to evolving consumer preferences, especially the demand for trendy and Instagram-
worthy outfits.  

Your company is also innovating and starting the waterless Yarn Dyeing Process as the business outlook for 
waterless yarn dyeing is highly positive and growing, driven by strong demand for sustainable textile production, 
increasing consumer consciousness, stringent environmental regulations, and the development of innovative, cost-
effective technologies. Key growth drivers include major brands adopting the technology, increasing investment in 
water-saving solutions, and partnerships to scale up waterless processes for wider adoption. While challenges like 
high initial investment and technical limitations for certain fibers persist, ongoing research and development are 
paving the way for broader implementation and market expansion.  

Key Growth Drivers & Opportunities of this waterless yarn dying Process reduces water consumption, chemical 
pollution, and waste, aligning with global sustainability goals and regulatory requirements and  Consumers are 
increasingly demanding eco-friendly products, creating a powerful market pull for textiles dyed using sustainable 
methods. Governments and international bodies are introducing stricter regulations on water usage and wastewater, 
pushing the industry towards water-saving solutions. Innovations like supercritical CO2 dyeing, air dyeing, and 
reverse micellar dyeing, along with ongoing R&D, are making waterless processes more efficient and feasible 

Beyond environmental advantages, these processes offer economic benefits by lowering operational costs related 
to water, energy, and chemical disposal. Collaborations, such as those between textile manufacturers, brands, and 
technology providers, are crucial for scaling up these solutions, with opportunities for strategic mergers and 
acquisitions in the dyeing machinery sector to foster innovation.  

Challenges & Areas for Development: The upfront cost of waterless dyeing equipment remains a significant 
barrier to widespread adoption for many manufacturers.  Some waterless technologies are currently limited to 
specific fabric types, such as synthetic fibers like polyester. Transitioning from pilot-scale solutions to broad 
industry adoption requires significant investment, systems innovation, and shared responsibility between brands 
and manufacturers.  

Your Directors are presenting the 41st Annual Report of your Company and the Audited Financial Statements for  
the period ended 31st March 2025. 

 

 
 



 

  

 

1. Financial Results: 
      (Rs. In Lacs) 

Particulars For the year ended 
31.03.2025 

For the year ended 
31.03.2024 

Revenue from Operations 1589.560 246.403 
Profit before Depreciation & Amortization 117.865 -5.82 
Depreciation & Amortization 0.282 0.317 
Profit / (Loss) before taxation 117.583 -6.138 
Provision for taxation (incl. deferred tax) -0.14 0.00 
Profit/ (Loss) for the year carried to Balance Sheet 102.857 -6.138 

2. Brief description of the Company’s working during the year/ state of Company’s affair: 

During the year under review, the revenue from operations stood at Rs.1589.560 as against Rs. 246.403 Lacs in the 
previous year and the total income (which includes other income) stood at Rs.1676.349 as against Rs. 261.257 
Lacs. The Company has earned a Net Profit of Rs.102.857 Lacs as compared to the Loss of Rs. 6.138 Lacs during 
the previous accounting year. 

 
3. Dividend 

To consolidate the future position of the Company and support the fund requirements to stimulate growth, your 
Board of Directors regret their inability to recommend any dividend for the year. 

4. Reserves 

The whole profit after tax has been transferred to P&L surplus. There is no amount that has been proposed to be 
carried to any other reserves. 

 
5. Change in the nature of business, if any: 

 
There was no change in nature of business 

 
6. Share Capital 

The Authorized Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 25,00,00,000/-. The Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Capital 
of the Company stood at Rs. 10,81,79,500 as on March 31, 2025. There was no requirement of fresh capital 
infusion during the year under review. 

 
7. Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the Company which have 
occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial statements relate and 
the date of the report: 

No material changes have occurred subsequent to the close of the financial year of the Company to which the 
balance sheet relates and the date of the report. 

8. Details of significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the 
going concern status and Company’s operations in future: 

There were no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going 
concern status and Company’s operations in future. 

9. Human Resource Development 
 
The Company recognizes that its people are the key to the success of the organization and in meeting its business 
objectives. The Human Resources function endeavors to create a congenial work environment and synchronizes 
the working of all the departments of the organization to accomplish their respective objectives which in turn 
helps the Company to build and achieve its goals and strategies. Employee relations during the year remained 
cordial. The Company has Five employees on its payroll as on March 31, 2025. 

10. Details of Subsidiary/ Joint Ventures/ Associate Companies: 

The Company did not have any Subsidiary Company/Joint Venture/Associate Company during the year  under 
review. 

11. Public Deposits: 
 



 

  

 

Your Company has not been accepting any deposits from the public and hence there are no unpaid/unclaimed 
deposits or any instance of default in repayment thereof. 
 
12. Extract of the Annual Return: 

 
The Annual Return as on 31st March, 2025 is available on the Company’s website at: www.swadeshiglobal.com. 

 
13. Conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo: 

 
A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY: 

 
i. The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy: 
Though our operations are not energy- intensive, efforts have been made to conserve energy by utilizing energy- 
efficient equipment’s. 

ii. The steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy: 
The Company is using electricity as the main source of energy and is currently not exploring any alternate source 
of energy. In future your Company will take steps to conserve energy and use alternative source of energy such as 
solar energy. 

iii. The capital investment on energy conservation equipment’s: 
Your Company firmly believes that our planet is in dire need of energy resources and conservation is the best 
policy. Your Company has not made any investment on energy conservation equipment’s. 

B. Technology absorption: 

i. The efforts made towards technology absorption: 

During the year the Company does not have any plant & machinery. Therefore, no technology absorption and 
research and development activity are carried out. 

ii. The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import 
substitution: 
No such specific benefit derived during the year due to technology absorption. 

iii. In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning 
of the financial year): 

No technology has been imported by the Company. 

iv. The expenditure incurred on Research and Development: Nil 

 

C. Foreign exchange Earnings and Outgo: 
Current Year Previous Year 

Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo NIL NIL 
 

14. Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: 
A. Changes in Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 

There has been change in the KMPs during the year under review. 

Mr. Gaurav Jain (DIN 06794973) Director has resigned from the Company w.e.f 14.02.2025 and Mr. Nitesh 
Kumar (DIN 09825886), Mr. Lalkrishna Sharma (DIN 09527277) and Mrs. Jayshree Radheshyam Sharma (DIN 
02754812) has been appointed as Additional director w.e.f. 29.10.2024 and Mrs. Krishna Vyas (DIN 07444324) 
who is liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, seek re-
appointment pursuant to Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

The following are the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company pursuant to Section 203 of the Companies Act, 
2013: 

 

Sr. No. Name of the Person Designation 
1 **Mr. Gaurav Jain Managing Director & Executive Director 
2 Ms. Krishna Kamalkishor Vyas Non-Executive- Independent Director 
3 Mr. Nitin Kuamr Radheshyam Sharma Non-Executive- Independent Director 
4 Mrs. Indira Dhariwal Non-Executive- Independent Director 
5 *Mr. Nitesh Kumar Executive Director 
6 *Mr. Lalkrishna Sharma Executive Director 



 

  

 

7 *Mrs. Jayshree Radheshyam Sharma Executive Director 
6 Mr. Vikas Jain CFO 
7 Ms. Shruti Jain Company Secretary 

(*Appointed w.e.f. 29.10.2024 & ** Resigned w.e.f.14.02.2025) 
 
Board Evaluation: 
Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Board has carried out an annual performance evaluation of its own 
performance, of individual Directors as well as the evaluation of the working of its Audit Committee, Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee. 

Directors: 

i. Independent Directors: 

In accordance with the criteria suggested by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the performance of 
each independent director was evaluated by the entire Board of Directors (in the absenceof the director getting 
evaluated) on various parameters like engagement, leadership, analysis, decision making, communication, 
governance, interest of stakeholders, etc. The Board was of the unanimous view that every Independent Director 
was a reputed professional and brought his rich experience to the deliberations of the Board. The Board also 
appreciated the contribution made by all Independent Directors in guiding the management to achieving higher 
growth and continuance of each independent director on the Board will be in the interest of the Company. 

ii. Non-Independent Directors: 
The performance of all the non-independent directors was evaluated by the Independent Directors at their separate 
meeting. Further, their performance was also evaluated by the Board of Directors. The various criteria considered 
for the purpose of evaluation included leadership, engagement, transparency, analysis, decision making, functional 
knowledge, governance, stakeholders etc. The Board was of the unanimous view that all the non-independent 
directors were providing good business and people leadership. 

 
iii. Declaration by an Independent Director(s) and re-appointment, if any: 

All the Independent Directors have provided the declaration of Independence, as required pursuant to Section 
149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013, stating that they meet the criteria of independence as provided in sub-section 
(6). 

 
iv. Familiarization Program me to Independent Directors: 

The Company has provided suitable familiarization program to Independent Directors so as to associate 
themselves with the nature of the industry in which the company operates and business model of the company in 
addition to regular presentation on technical operations, marketing and exports and financial statements. In 
addition to the above, Directors are periodically advised about the changes effected in the Corporate Law, Listing 
Regulations with regard to their roles, rights and responsibilities as Directors of the company. The same is 
available on the website of the company. 

15. Details of Committee of the Board: 
Currently the Board has 4 Committees: The Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Share 
Transfer Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee. The Composition of various committees and 
compliances, as per the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder and SEBI 
(Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, are as follows: 
 

A. Audit Committee: 

i. Constitution of Audit Committee: 

The Audit Committee comprising of Mr.Nitin kumar Radheshyam sharma (Appointed wef 26.07.2023) as the 
Chairman of the committee, and  Ms. Krishna Kamalkishor Vyas and Mrs. Indira Dhariwal as other members of the 
Committee. The recommendations of the Audit Committee is always welcomed and accepted by the Board and all 
the major steps impacting the financials of the Company are undertaken only after the consultation of the Audit 
Committee.Details of establishment of vigil mechanism for directors and employees: 

The Company has established vigil mechanism pursuant to Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 for 
Directors and Employees to report their concerns and has also taken steps to safeguard any person using this 
mechanism from victimization and in appropriate and exceptional cases, there is direct access to approach Mr. 
Amit Kumar, Chairman of the Audit Committee. 

B. Nomination and remuneration committee: 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee under Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 comprises of 



 

  

 

Mr.Nitin kumar Radheshyam sharma (Appointed wef 26.07.2023)  as the Chairman of the committee and Ms. 
Krishna Kamalkishor Vyas, & Mrs. Indira Dhariwal as other members of the Committee. The Committee has 
framed a policy to determine the qualification and attributes for appointment and basisof determination of 
remuneration of all the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees. A copy of policy is annexed as 
Annexure- 5. 

Details of remunerations paid to the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel during 2024-25 
are given below: 

 
Name of the 
Directors 

Directors’ Position Relationshi
p with
 ot
her 
Directors 

Salary & 
allowances 

(Rs.) 

Perquisites 
(Rs.) 

Sitting Fees 
(Rs.) 

Mr. Gaurav Jain 
(DIN 06794973) 
**(Resigned on 
14.02.2025) 

Managing 
Director 

-- Nil Nil Nil 

Ms. Indira Dhariwal 
(DIN 02524743) 

Independent 
Director 

-- Nil Nil Nil 

Ms. Krishna Kamal 
KishorVyas (DIN 
07444324) 

Independent 
Director 

-- Nil Nil Nil 

Mr. Vikas Sanklecha CFO -- 0.897 Nil Nil 
Ms. Shruti Jain Company 

Secretary 
-- 3.00 Nil Nil 

Mr.Nitin kumar Radheshyam 
sharma 
(DIN 06442840) 

Independent 
Director 

-- Nil Nil Nil 

*Mr. Nitesh Kumar 
(DIN 09825886) 
(Appointed on 29.10.2024) 

Director -- Nil Nil Nil 

*Mr. Lalkrishna Sharma 
(DIN 09527277) 
(Appointed on 29.10.2024) 

Director -- Nil Nil Nil 

*Mrs. Jayshree Radheshyam 
Sharma 
(DIN 02754812) 
(Appointed on 29.10.2024) 

Director -- Nil Nil Nil 

C. Share Transfer Committee 
The Share transfer Committee comprises of Mr.Nitin kumar Radheshyam sharma (Appointed wef 26.07.2023) as 
the Chairman of the committee, and   Mrs. Indira Dhariwal as other members of the Committee. The role of the 
Committee is to consider and resolve any difficulties faced by the shareholders in transfer of shares. The meetings 
of the Committee are held once in a quarter and the complaints are responded within the time frame provided. 
 
D. Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee: 
The Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee comprises of, Mr.Nitin kumar Radheshyam sharma (Appointed wef 
26.07.2023) as the Chairman of the committee, and  Ms. Krishna Kamalkishor Vyas & Mrs. Indira Dhariwal as 
other members of the Committee. The role of the Committee is to consider and resolve securities holders’ 
complaint. The meetings of the Committee are held once in a quarter and the complaints are responded within the 
time frame provided. 
 
16. Statutory Auditors: 
M/s. G C A S & Associates LLP, (FRN No.: 327601E) Chartered Accountant statutory auditor of the Company 
were appointed for a period of five years at the 40th Annual General Meeting as Statutory Auditors till the 
conclusion of 46st Annual General Meeting as per Notification issued by MCA the Company need not place the 
resolution for ratification at the AGM and hence no resolution is placed before the AGM. 

The Auditors have confirmed that they are not disqualified from continuing as Auditors of the Company. 

There are no qualifications contained in the Auditors Report and therefore, there are no further explanations to be 
provided for in this Report. 

 



 

  

 

17. Secretarial Audit Report: 
 
The Board of Directors have appointed M/s. Sindhu Nair & Associates to conduct Secretarial Audit for the 
financial year 2024-25, as required under Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed 
thereunder. The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year 2024-25 forms part of the Directors’ Report as 
Annexure 1. 

18. Board Meetings: 
During the year under review, the Company has conducted 6 (Six) Board Meetings. The intervening gap between 
any two meetings was not more than 120 days as prescribed by the Companies Act, 2013 
 

Sr.No Type of Meeting Date 
1 Board Meeting 03rd May, 2024 
2 Board Meeting 29th May, 2024 
3 Board Meeting 13th August, 2024 
4 Board Meeting 29th October, 2024 
5 Board Meeting 22nd January, 2025 
6 Board Meeting 14th February, 2025 

 
 

19. Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments under section 186: 
 
During the year under review, your Company has not granted any inter corporate loan, neither provided any 
Guarantee in connection with any loan to any party nor made any investment in terms of the provisions of Section 
186 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

20. Particulars of contracts or arrangements with Related Party: 
 

Business Responsibility & Sustainability Report (BRSR) In accordance with the Listing Regulations, the BRSR 
describes the performance of the Company on environmental, social and governance aspects. The disclosures on 
key performance indicators (KPIs) of BRSR Core and Independent Contracts or arrangements with related parties 
During the year under review:  
 
a) all contracts/arrangements/ transactions entered by the Company with related parties were in the ordinary course 
of business and on arm’s length basis. 
 
b) contracts/arrangements/ transactions which were material, were entered into with related parties in accordance 
with the policy of the Company on Materiality of Related Party Transactions and on dealing with Related Party 
Transactions. Details of contracts/arrangements/ transactions with related party which are required to be reported in 
Form No. AOC-2 in terms of Section 134(3)(h) read with Section 188 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 is available in annual report. There were no materially significant related party transactions 
which could have potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large. Members may refer to Note 26 of 
the Standalone Financial Statement which sets out Related Parties Disclosures pursuant to Ind AS.  

21. Directors’ Responsibility Statement: 
 
As stipulated under clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors 
subscribe to the Directors Responsibility Statement and state that: 

 
a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2025, the applicable accounting standards 
read with requirements set out under Schedule III to the Act have been followed and there are no material departures 
from the same;  
 
b) the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgements and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at 
March 31, 2025 and of the profit of the Company for the year ended on that date;  

 
c) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 

with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud 
and other irregularities;  

 
d) the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;  

 
e) the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal 

financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively; and  



 

  

 

 
f) the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and 

that such systems are adequate and operating effectively. 

22. Managerial Remuneration: 
 
The Company’s remuneration policy is directed towards rewarding performance, based on review of achievements. 
The remuneration policy is in consonance with existing industry practice. Performance Evaluation The Company 
has a policy for performance evaluation of the Board, Committees and other individual Directors (including 
Independent Directors) which includes criteria for performance evaluation of Non-Executive Directors and 
Executive Directors. In accordance with the manner of evaluation specified by the HRNR Committee, the Board 
carried out annual performance evaluation of the Board, its Committees and Individual Directors. The Independent 
Directors carried out annual performance evaluation of the Chairman, the non-independent directors and the Board 
as a whole. The Chairman of the respective Committees shared the report on evaluation with the respective 
Committee members. The performance of each Committee was evaluated by the Board based on the report of 
evaluation received from the respective Committees. 
 
23. Management Discussion and Analysis Report: 

There is a continuous process for identifying, evaluating and managing significant risks faced through a risk 
management process designed to identify the key risks facing business. Risks would include significant weakening 
in demand from core-end markets, inflation uncertainties and any adverse regulatory developments, etc. During the 
period a risk analysis and assessment was conducted and no major risks were noticed. The report on the same is 
appended as Annexure 3. 

 
24. Secretarial Standards 
 
The Directors state that “the Board have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 
applicable Secretarial Standards and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively”. 

25. Corporate Governance: 
 
The Company is committed to maintain the highest standards of governance and has also implemented several best 
governance practices. The Corporate Governance Report as per the Listing Regulations forms part of this Annual 
Report. Certificate from the Auditors of the Company confirming compliance with the conditions of Corporate 
Governance is obtained. 

26. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 

 

Since Profitability of the Company is not cross the Limit for Compulsory Spending on CSR Activities hence 
presently we have not spent on these activities howver our company is committed to contribute in social spending. 

  

27. Internal Financial Control System and their Adequacy: 
 
Adequate internal controls, systems, and checks are in place, commensurate with the size of the Company and the 
nature of its business. The management exercises financial control on the operations through a well-defined budget 
monitoring process and other standard operating procedures. 

 

28. Risk Management Policy: 

 

The Company has a structured Group Risk Management Framework, designed to identify, assess and mitigate risks 
appropriately. The Risk Management Committee has been entrusted with the responsibility to assist the Board in: 
a) overseeing the Company’s ea) overseeing the Company’s enterprise wide risk management framework; b) 
ensuring that all material Strategic and Commercial risks including Cybersecurity, Safety and Operations, 
Compliance, Control and Financial risks have been identified and assessed; and c) ensuring that all adequate risk 
mitigation measures are in place to address these risks. Further details on the risk management activities including 
the implementation of risk management policy, key risks identified and their mitigations are covered in The 
Company has received declarations from all the Independent Directors of the Company confirming that: a) they 
meet the criteria of independence prescribed under the Act and the Listing Regulations; and b) they have registered 
their names in the Independent Directors’ Databank. The Company has devised, inter alia, the following policies 
viz.: a) Policy for selection of Directors and determining Directors’ independence; and b) Remuneration Policy for 
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees. The Policy for selection of Directors and determining 
Directors’ independence sets out the guiding principles for the HRNR Committee for identifying persons who are 
qualified to become Directors and to determine the independence of Directors, while considering their appointment 



 

  

 

as independent directors of the Company. The Policy also provides for the factors in evaluating the suitability of 
individual board members with diverse background and experience that are relevant for the Company’s operations.  

29. Disclosure as per Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition 
and Redressal) Act, 2013: 
Pursuant to Section 22 of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) 
Act, 2013 read with Rule 14, the internal authorized person under the said act has confirmed that no 
complaint/case has been filed/pending with the Company during the year. 

 
30. Other Disclosures / Reporting: 

Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items as there were no 
transactions on these items during the year under review: 
a) Details relating to deposits covered under Chapter V of the Act. 
b) Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise. 
c) Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company under any scheme. 
d) Details of payment of remuneration or commission to Managing Director or Joint Managing 
e) Director of the Company from any of its subsidiaries as the Company does not have any Subsidiaries/Joint 
Venture/Associate Company. 
f) Voting rights which are not directly exercised by the employees in respect of shares for the subscription/ 
purchase of which loan was given by the Company (as there is no scheme pursuant to which such persons can 
beneficially hold shares as envisaged under section 67(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013). 

 
31. Acknowledgement: 
Your Directors wish to place on record their appreciation for the co-operation extended by all the employees, 
Bankers, Financial Institutions, various State and Central Government authorities and stakeholders. 

 
 
For SWADESHI INDUSTRIES AND LEASING LIMITED 

 
Sd/- 
 
Lalkrishna Sharma  
DIRECTOR  
(DIN 09527277) 
Date:04.09.2025  
Place: Mumbai 



 

  

 

FORM NO. MR-3 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

For the financial year ended March 31, 2025 
 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule no. 9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 
To, 
The Members 
SWADESHI INDUSTRIES AND LEASING LIMITED 
303, Apollo Arcade, Prem Co-op Soc Ltd,  
R.K. Singh Marg, Mogra Pada,  
Andheri East, Mumbai – 400069 
 
We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 
adherence to good corporate practices by SWADESHI INDUSTRIES AND LEASING LIMITED (hereinafter 
called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for 
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 
 
Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 
records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents 
and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit of the Company, we hereby report that 
in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2025, 
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-
processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made 
hereinafter: 
 
We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by 
the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025, according to the provisions of:  
 

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 
 

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder; 
 

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Byelaws framed thereunder; 
 

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the 
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial 
Borrowings; - (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); 

 
v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of 

India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):- 
 

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 
Regulations, 2011; 

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 
 
c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2009; 
 
d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 

2014); 
 
e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 

2008; 
 
f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 
 

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018 
 
h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; (Not 

applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); 
 



 

  

 

i. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; (Not 
applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); and 

 
j. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), 

2015. 
 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of Secretarial Standards with regard to 
Meeting of Board of Directors (SS-1) and General Meetings (SS-2) issued by The Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India. 
 
During the period under review, the Company has complied with the applicable provisions of the Act, Rules, 
Regulations and Guidelines, as mentioned above. 
 
We further report & confirm that the company has maintained Structured Digital Database in compliance with 
the Regulation 3(5) and 3(6) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations, 2015 for the year ended 31.03.2025. 
 
We further report that: 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-
Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors / 
Committees of Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in 
compliance with the provisions of the Act.  
 
M/s. D G S M & Co. (FRN: 101606W) Chartered Accountants, have resigned from the office of Statutory 
Auditors of the Company with effect from April 30, 2024, as firm has decided to resign from audit of all listed 
company resulting into a casual vacancy in the office of Statutory Auditors of the Company as envisaged by 
section 139(8) of the Act. Then, M/s. G C A S and Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants (FRN: 327601E), 
Siliguri, upon the recommendation of Board, was appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to fill the 
casual vacancy caused by the resignation of the earlier Auditors. Further, the registered Office of the 
Company is changed during the period under review. The aforesaid changes during the period under review 
have been carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 
 
Based on the representation given by the Management of the Company and as verified by us, it is observed 
that there are no such laws which are specifically applicable to the industry in which the Company operates. 
 
Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on 
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further 
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the 
meeting. 
 
Majority decisions of the Board are carried out unanimously as recorded in the minutes of the meetings of the 
Board of Directors. 
 
We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the 
size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations 
and guidelines. 
 
This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure I and forms an integral 
part of this Report. 
 
For SINDHU NAIR & ASSOCIATES  

Sd/-  
(SINDHU G NAIR) 
Practicing Company Secretary 
Proprietor  
(FCS- 7938, CP- 8046) 
UDIN: F007938G001143041 
 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 02-09-2025 



 

  

 

ANNEXURE I TO SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
 
To, 
The Members 
SWADESHI INDUSTRIES AND LEASING LIMITED 
303, Apollo Arcade, Prem Co-op Soc Ltd,  
R.K. Singh Marg, Mogra Pada,  
Andheri East, Mumbai – 400069 
 
Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 
 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done 
on test basis to ensure that the correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the 
practices and processes we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Account 
of the Company. 

4. Wherever required, we have obtained management representation about the compliance of laws, 
rules, regulations, norms and standards and happening of events. 

5. The compliance of the provisions of the Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations and 
norms is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of 
procedure on test basis. 

6. Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 
For SINDHU NAIR & ASSOCIATES 
 
 
 
 
(SINDHU G NAIR) 
Practicing Company Secretary 
Proprietor  
(FCS- 7938, CP- 8046) 
 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 02-09-2025 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

  

 

Annexure 2 
 

DETAILS OF REMUNERATION 
 

Details pertaining to remuneration as required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Rule 5(1) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 

 
1. The Ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the company for 

the financial year; 
 
 Your Company has not paid any remuneration to its Director during the financial year 2024-25 hence no  

information is required to be given for above mentioned  item. 
 
2. The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, 

Company Secretary or Manager, if any during the Financial Year 2023-24: 
 
Sr. 
No. 

Name of Director/ KMPand 
Designation 

Remuneration of Director/ KMP 
for  the financial year 2024-25 

% Increase in Remuneration 
in    the Financial Year 2024-25 

1. Mr. Vikas Sanklecha (CFO) 89,700 Nil 
2. Ms. Shruti Jain (CS) 3,00,000 Nil 
3. The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the Financial Year: 
 

In the Financial Year, there was No increase in the median remuneration of employees. (300000:300000) 
 
4. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company: 
 

There were Five (Including KMP) permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as on March 31,2025. 
 
5. Average percentile increases already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in 

the last Financial Year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and 
justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial 
remuneration: 

 
6. Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the company: Yes, the 

remuneration paid is as per the remuneration policy of the Company. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Sr. 
No 

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 % Change Remarks 

1 Managerial Remuneration 389700 600000 35.05%  
2 Other Employee Salary 1226000 308000 74.87%  



 

  

 

 
 
 

Annexure 3 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS: 
 

Copper is a chemical element with the symbol Cu and atomic number 29. It's a soft, malleable, and ductile metal 
with a reddish-orange color. Copper is an excellent conductor of electricity and heat, making it widely used in 
various industries, such as: 

1. Electrical wiring and circuits 

2. Plumbing and architecture 

3. Electronics and circuit boards 

4. Coins and currency (many countries use copper in their coins) 

5. Jewelry and decorative items  

Copper also has antimicrobial properties, making it useful in medical applications.  

Textile Industry is one of the leading industries in the world. It is one of the key and main sectors of India’s 
manufacturing segment as it contributes significantly to the economy in terms of employment generation and 
revenue.  

The food industry is a complex, global network of diverse businesses that supplies most of the food consumed by 
the world's population.  

 

OPPORTUNITIES & THREATS 

 
The global demand for copper continues to grow. World refined usage has more than tripled in the last 50 years, 
thanks to expanding sectors such as electrical and electronic products, building construction, industrial machinery 
and equipment, transportation equipment, and consumer and general products. The threats to the industries are 
majorly - volatility in LME Copper price affecting turnover/ profitability, Increasing cost of inputs, attrition of 
skilled manpower, Limited availability of competent underground Metal mining contractor / outsourcing agency in 
India.  

The future for the Indian textile industry looks promising, buoyed by both strong domestic consumption as well as 
export demand. With consumerism and disposable income on the rise, the retail sector   has experienced a rapid 
growth in the past decade. The employment generation looms to better quality technology looms and improved 
quality of processing industry. However, there are several challenges ahead for the textile industry for enhancing its 
competitive strength and global positioning in terms of inflexible Labour laws and poor infrastructure etc which will 
have to be addressed to sustain the growth momentum of the Country.  
 

OUTLOOK 
 

Future Outlook:  

The outlook is strong, with waterless dyeing projected to play a pivotal role in transforming the textile industry 
towards a more sustainable future. A hybrid approach, combining traditional methods with waterless alternatives, is 
expected to be the norm in the mid-term, with waterless technologies gradually becoming the standard as technology 
matures and costs decline.  

Company has started its Retail Chain under the Swadshi Banner as Swadeshi grocery store in Rural or Tier two and 
Three Cities with aim of delivering healthy products connecting villages to districts and Country. Global inflation 
eased to 5.7% in CY24 from 6.7% in CY23, supported by the stabilization of supply chains post-COVID and a 
moderation in commodity prices. This enabled major central banks to ease monetary policy, lowering benchmark 
rates by 50 to 100 bps in CY24. However, geopolitical tension and policy uncertainties, including trade tariffs, led to 
volatility in global markets but with in right mindset of large population to use Swadeshi Products it will not impact 
retail Chain adversely impacting energy demand, resulting in softer prices and narrower margins. 

Despite global headwinds, the Indian economy was remarkably resilient. While growth moderated to 6.5% in FY 
2024-25 from 9.2% in FY 2023-24, India retained its position as the fastest growing major economy in the world. 
Domestic consumption witnessed mixed trends with rural demand strengthening, and urban consumption 
moderating. Macro-prudential regulatory tightening of credit in FY 2023-24 led to moderation in personal credit 
growth to 16% in FY 2024-25, from 27% in FY 2023-24. 

Consumption demand remained relatively soft during the first half with general elections and peak monsoon. The 



 

  

 

festive season and Mahakumbh revived domestic markets in the second half. However, pockets of urban and rural 
demand are yet to fully recover. External balances in India saw continued strength in current account with resilient 
services surplus (current account deficit 

As an organization known for creating healthier and innovative products, our journey has always been one of 
evolution, Innovation and belief of socioeconomic Development with balanced growth  Over the years, our strong 
foothold in the edible oils segment has yielded incredible results. Recognizing the need for sustainability, we have 
taken steps to secure our future by diversifying the age profile of our oil plantations,focusing on nurturing young 
plantations that will ensure the longevity of our business connecting same with food Park and Child Industries in 
every Town or Grarm Panchayat. 

These initiatives not only reflect our commitment to sustainable growth but also position us as a forward-thinking 
leader in multiple industries, always striving to create a better, healthier tomorrow Our brands, known for 
embodying trust, have become synonymous with reliability across our business segments. ‘Agrovia ’ and Seadeshi 
Aahar are of our brands that resonates deeply with our customers. This trust is not just a product of our offerings but 
also of our expansive Direct sales  Network, which spans India and the globe, ensuring our consumers get the 
products they desire. We are continuously enhancing the synergy between our Direct Distribution Model and retail 
networks to deliver a seamless and exceptional experience for our customers. As part of our ongoing efforts, we are 
also digitising our distribution network, further strengthening our digital landscape to keep pace with evolving 
market demands. 

Shareholders and Investors Exemplifying prudent planning, we have fortified our financial standing and generated 
remarkable returns for our valued shareholders and investors. Our commitment to enhancing financial performance 
has played a pivotal role in cultivating the trust of our stakeholders. 

Employees and Workers: We strive to create a highly conducive environment for our employees. Employee well-
being is paramount to us and deeply embedded in our culture. We provide equal opportunities for all Company 
members, creating an environment where everyone can thrive. 

Consumers Our approach to value creation has the customer at its Centre. We continuously strive to comprehend 
these goals sensitively and carefully to provide them with goods that satisfy their unfulfilled wants and improve 
their experiences. Our objective is to deliver outstanding product experiences at competitive prices 

Direct Distribution Network:  We diligently enhance our Direct Distribution Network to adapt to the continuously 
evolving landscape. With a keen focus on expanding our market reach, we are investing in e-commerce channels 
and capitalizing on modern trade routes to ensure broader product accessibility. Our Direct distribution Channel 
Partner inclusive digital transformation is a pivotal strategy for thriving in the swiftly changing distribution 
landscape. We are cultivating a connected and future-ready ecosystem, ensuring a competitive edge in the market. 

Research and Development Our approach to delivering exceptional consumer value at affordable prices is 
continuously innovating and crafting distinct product offerings specially Non preservative Natural Foods. We 
provide unique and differentiated products that resonate with our customers by addressing evolving consumer needs. 
Our R&D team focuses on delivering products that best fulfil our consumers’ interests. Our state-of-the-art research 
and development facilities ensure that every product we create adheres to the highest quality standards. 

Partnerships and Collaborations: We leverage partnerships as a cornerstone of unlocking the full potential of our 
innovative capabilities. Collaborating with research institutions, universities, technology providers, and industry 
experts is more than just a strategy for us. We have ingrained it in our culture. By uniting with external entities, we 
transcend our expertise boundaries, accessing specialized skills and cutting-edge technologies. This innovative 
fusion sparks creativity throughout our entire value chain 

Packaging:  We are enhancing our focus on packaging to ensure our consumers are well-informed about the natural 
ingredients in our products. Our commitment extends to sustainable packaging, as we aim to increase the use of 
recyclable and biodegradable materials, significantly reducing packaging waste. We are actively exploring eco-
friendly and innovative packaging solutions that align with our goal of minimising our environmental impact, 
including adopting biodegradable and recyclable options. 

As we are MSME has challenges in Financial and Technological Capacity which we are absorbing from various 
Professional Experts and Investors and We have undertaken strategic investments in modern and efficient 
infrastructure to support our operations and meet the increasing demand for our products. Our state of-the-art 
manufacturing facilities, warehouses, and distribution centres have advanced machinery and technology. These 
investments enable Quality We are enhancing the quality of our products as it lies at the heart of our operations. Our 
ongoing efforts to upgrade our manufacturing facilities have enabled us to obtain crucial certifications that validate 
the excellence of our products. 

We prioritize the improving the quality of our products to ensure that our consumers lead a nutritious life. Our 
Certifications Packaging We are enhancing our focus on packaging to ensure our consumers are well-informed 
about the natural ingredients in our products. Our commitment extends to sustainable packaging, as we aim to 
increase the use of recyclable and biodegradable materials, significantly reducing packaging waste. We are actively 
exploring eco-friendly and innovative packaging solutions that align with our goal of minimising our environmental 
impact, including adopting biodegradable and recyclable options. 

Consumers us to maintain high product quality, improve operational efficiency, and ensure timely delivery. 



 

  

 

Moreover, our facilities comply with international safety, hygiene, and quality standards, embracing sustainable 
design and construction practices by integrating energy-efficient systems and environmentally friendly materials. 
Furthermore, we have implemented comprehensive maintenance programmes to ensure the optimal functioning and 
safety of our machinery, equipment, and facilities.  

This approach includes regular inspections, preventive maintenance measures, and timely repairs to minimise 
downtime and maximise asset performance.Strengthening Our Relations Value Chain Partners Establishing a 
sustainable and resilient supply chain in the dynamic business landscape necessitates collaborative efforts from all 
stakeholders. We have gone above and beyond to integrate sustainability across our value chain processes. We 
recognise the necessity for systemic transformation to innovate processes and leverage emerging technologies 
within the supply chain 

 

RISK AND CONCERN 

The Company has laid down risk management framework keeping the Company’s objectives, growth strategy and 
process complexities arising out of its business operations. Risk management in the Company is a continuous 
process of identifying, assessing and managing all the opportunities, threats and risks faced by the Company to 
achieve its goals. Indian copper and textile industry face many risks which were in the short term, will moderate 
growth Inflation, high interest rates, depreciating rupees, delays in policy initiatives to boost investments and capital 
flows 

INTERNAL CONTROLS 
The Company has an Internal Control System, commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its operations. 

DISCUSSIONON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE 

(Rs. In lakhs) 

 

Particulars For the year ended 
31.03.2025 

For the year ended 
31.03.2024 

Revenue from Operations 1589.560 246.403 
Profit before Depreciation & Amortization 117.865 -5.82 
Depreciation & Amortization 0.282 0.317 
Profit / (Loss) before taxation 117.583 -6.138 
Provision for taxation (incl. deferred tax) -0.14 0.00 
Profit/ (Loss) for the year carried to Balance Sheet 102.857 -6.138 

MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCES / INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS FRONT, 
INCLUDING 
Our people are our most important asset and we value their talent, integrity and dedication. Our responsibilities 
towards our people, who are instrumental to our success with their devotion and relentless support covers a quantum 
part of the company strategy. We believe that training is essential to build skill sets in growing organization. The 
focus has been to create an environment where performance is rewarded, individuals are respected and associates get 
opportunities to realize their potential. 
As in the past, industrial relations continued to remain cordial in the Company. There was no strike or labour unrest 
during the period under review 



 

  

 

 
Annexure 4 

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (FY2024-25) 
 
In terms of Compliance to Regulation 34(3) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure requirements) 2015, on Corporate Governance, your Company is complying with the guidelines. 
The report for current period is as follows: 

 
1) Company’s Philosophy: 

The Company’s policies, practices and philosophy adopted since inception are in line with Corporate 
Governance. These policies, practices are required periodically to ensure its effective compliance. The 
composition of Board of Directors is well balanced with a view to manage the affairs of the Company 
efficiently and professionally. The company’s philosophy is to produce high quality conforming to the 
International Standards and provide satisfaction to all stakeholders including customers, shareholders and 
employees. 

 
2) Board of Directors 

The Board of Directors of the Company comprises of Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Directors 
who have an in-depth knowledge of business in addition to the expertise in their specialization. The Board of 
the Company comprises of four Directors including a Women Director. 

 
(i) Composition and Category of Directors as of 31st March 2025 is as follows: 

Name of the Director No. of Directors % 
Executive Directors 3 50 
Non Executive & Independent Directors 3 50 

Total 6 100 

 
(ii) The Category of Directors on the Board of the Company is as under: 
 

Name of the Director Category No. of 
other 

Director 
ships@ 

No. of Board Committee in 
which Director is 

Member Chairman 

**Mr. Gaurav Jain 
(DIN 06794973) 

Executive- 
Managing Director 

5 NA N.A. 

*Mr. Nitish Kumar 
(DIN 09825886) 

Executive Director 1   

*Mr. Lalkrishna Sharma 
(DIN 09527277) 

Executive Director 1   

*Mrs. Jayshree 
Radheshyam Sharma 
(DIN 02754812) 

Executive Director 1 NIL NA 

Mrs. Indira Dhariwal  
(DIN02524743) 

Non- Executive 
Independent Director 

1 4 N.A. 

Ms. Krishna Kamal Kishor Vyas  
(DIN 07444324) 

Non- Executive 
Independent Director 

2 7 N.A. 

*Mr. Nitin Kumar Radheshyam Sharma 
(DIN 06442840) 

Non- Executive 
Independent Director 

2 4 4 

(*Appointed w.e.f 29.10.2024 & ** Resigned w.e.f. 14.02.2025) 
 

None of the Directors of the Company holds membership of more than 10 Board Committees or Chairmanships of 
more than 5 Board Committees. 

The Board of Directors duly met Six 6) times during the period from 1st April 2024 to 31st March 2025. The  dates 
on which the meetings were held are as follows: 

 
03rd  May, 2024, 29th May 2024, 13th August, 2024, 29th October, 2024, 22nd January, 2025 and 14th February, 
2025. 

(iii) Attendance of each Director at the Board Meetings and the last AGM held on 25th August  2023: 



 

  

 

Name of the Director Board Meetings held during 
the tenure of the Director 

Board Meeting 
Attended 

Last AGM 
attendance (Yes 
/No) 

**Mr. Gaurav Jain (DIN 06794973) 6 6 Present 
Mrs. Indira Dhariwal (DIN 02524743) 6 6 Present 

Ms. Krishna Kamal KishorVyas                  
(DIN 07444324) 

6 6 Present 

Mr. Nitin Kumar Radheshyam Sharma     
(DIN 06442840) 

6 6 Present 

*Mr. Lakrishna Sharma 
(DIN 09527277) 

2 2 Present 

*Mr. Nitesh Kumar 
(DIN 09825886) 

2 2 Present 

*Mrs. Jayshree Radheshyam Sharma 2 2 Present 
  
*Appointed w.e.f 29.10.2024 & ** Resigned w.e.f.14.02.2025 

 

None of the Non-executive Directors during the year held any shares or convertible instruments. None of the 
Directors are having any inter-se relationships with the Company or between them. The details of familiarization 
programmes imparted to independent directors is available on website of the Company at 
http://Swadeshiglobal.com /uploads/policies/FAMILIRISATION%20PROG.%20SR.pdf 

3) Audit Committee: 
i) Terms of reference: 

The following terms of reference stipulated by the Board of Directors to the Audit Committee cover all the matters 
specified under the Listing Regulations as well as the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

1. To oversee the financial reporting process. 
2. To oversee the disclosures of financial information. 
3. To recommend appointment / removal of statutory auditors and fixation of their fees. 
4. To review the quarterly/half yearly financial results and annual financial statements with the management, 

internal auditor and the statutory auditor. 
5. To consider the reports of the internal auditors and to discuss their findings with the management and to suggest 

corrective actions wherever necessary. 
6. To Review with the management, statutory auditors and the internal auditors the nature and scope of                         audits 

and the adequacy of internal control systems. 
7. To Review major accounting policies and compliance with accounting standards and listing agreement entered 

into with the stock exchange and other legal requirements concerning financial statements. 
8. To Look into the reasons for any substantial defaults in payment to the depositors, debenture holders, 

shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividend) and creditors, if any. 
9. To Review related party transactions of material nature, with promoters or the management and their 

relatives that may have potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large. 
10. To investigate any matter covered under Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
11. To Review the financial and risk management policies. 

ii) No. of Meetings held during the period: 
During the period the Committee had met 5 (Five) times i.e. 03rd May, 2024, 29th May, 2024, 13th August, 2024, 
29th October, 2024 and 22nd January, 2025. 

Composition, name of Members and attendance during the period: 

The Composition of Audit Committee and the details of attendance of its meetings are as under: 
Name of the Director Designation Category Committee Meetings 

held during the tenure  
of Director on the 
Committee 

Committee 
Meetings 
Attended 

*Mr. Nitin Kumar 
Radheshyam Sharma 
(DIN 06442840) 

Chairman Non- Executive 
Independent Director 

5 5 

Mr. Gaurav Jain (DIN 
06794973) 

Member Executive Director 5 5 

Mrs. Indira Dhariwal 
(DIN 02524743) 

Member Non- Executive 
Independent Director 

5 5 

Ms. Krishna Kamal 
KishorVyas (DIN 
07444324) 

Member Non- Executive 
Independent Director 

5 5 



 

  

 

 *Appointed & ** Resigned w.e.f.14.2.2025 
 
The Chairman of the Audit Committee was present at the last Annual General Meeting. 

4) Nomination and Remuneration Committee: 

i) Terms of reference: 

The powers, role and terms of Nomination and Remuneration committee covers the areas as contained in 
Regulation 19 of the Listing Regulations and Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Committee 
comprises of Three Independent Non-Executive Directors and one Executive Director. The terms of reference 
of the Committee is to deal with the matters related to remuneration by way of salary, perquisites, benefits, etc. 
for the Executive and Whole-time Directors of the Company. 

ii) No. of Meetings held during the period: 

During the period the Committee had 3(Three) meeting held on 29th May, 2024, 29th October, 2024 and 22nd 
January 2025. 
 

iii) Composition, name of Members and attendance during the period: 
 
The Composition of Nomination and Remuneration committee and the details of attendance of 

itsmeetings are as under: 
Name of the Director Designation Category Committee Meetings 

held during the 
tenureof Director on 

the Committee 

Committee 
Meetings 
Attended 

Mr. Nitin Kumar 
Radheshyam Sharma 
(DIN 06442840) 

Chairman Non- Executive Independent 
Director 

3 3 

Mrs. Indira Dhariwal 
(DIN 02524743) 

Member Non- Executive Independent 
Director 

3 3 

Ms. Krishna Kamal 
KishorVyas (DIN 
07444324) 

Member Non- Executive Independent 
Director 

3 3 

 
Performance Evaluation of Independent Directors 
The Board evaluates the performance Independent Directors every year. All the Independent Directors are 

eminent personalities having wide experience in the field of business, industry and administration. Their 
presence on the Board is advantageous and fruitful in taking business decisions. 

5) Remuneration of Directors for 2024-2025: 
(a) All pecuniary relationship or transactions of the non-executive directors vis-à-vis the listed entity; There is no 

pecuniary relationship or transactions of the non-executive directors with the Company. 
 

(b) criteria of making payments to non-executive directors and web link; 
No payment has been made to non-executive Directors. The web link of the same is available at 
www.swadeshiglobal.com 

(c) No remuneration is paid to any of the Executive and Non-executive Directors. Hence no further 
disclosure is required to be furnished. 

6) Stakeholders Relationship Committee: 

i) Terms of reference: 

The functions of Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee include redressal of investor’s complaints related to 
share transfers, non-receipt of Annual Reports, dividend payment, issue of duplicate share certificates etc. 

 
ii) No. of meetings held and attended during the period: 
During the period the Committee had met 2 (Two) times i.e. 29th May, 2024 and  22nd January 2025 

Composition, name of Members and attendance during the period: 

The composition of Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee is as under: 
Name of the Director Designation Category Committee Meetings 

held during the tenure 
of Director 
on the Committee 

Committee 
Meetings 
Attended 



 

  

 

*Mr. Nitin Kumar 
Radheshyam Sharma (DIN 
06442840) 

Chairman Non- Executive 
Independent Director 

2 2 

Mr. Gaurav Jain  
(DIN 06794973) 

Member Executive Director 2 2 

Mrs. Indira Dhariwal  
(DIN 02524743) 

Member Non- Executive 
Independent Director 

2 2 

Ms. Krishna Kamal KishorVyas  
(DIN 07444324) 

Member Non- Executive 
Independent Director 

2 2 

 
iii) Name and Designation of Compliance Officer: 

Mr. Vikas Sanklecha has been designated as Compliance Officer in terms of Regulation 27 of SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015 and also Clause 6 (1) of Listing Regulations. 

iv) The details with respect No. of complaints received from the shareholders, No. of Complaint solved to 
the satisfaction of shareholders and No. of Complaint pending during the year ended on 31st March 2024 
are given here under: 

 
No. of Complaints Received during the FY 2024-25 NIL 

No. of Complaint Solved to the Satisfaction of Shareholders. NIL 

No. of Complaint pending at the end of FY 2023-24 NIL 

7) Share Transfer Committee: 

i) Terms of reference: 

 The Board has delegated the powers of approving the transfer/ transmission of shares to the Share Transfer 
Committee. The Committee is vested with the requisite powers & authority to specifically look into share 
transfer, transmission, rematerialization and dematerialization of shares. 

ii) No. of meetings held and attended during the period: 

During the period the Committee had met 1 (One) times i.e. 29th May, 2024. Composition, name of Members 
and attendance during the period: 

The composition of Share Transfer Committee is as under: 
Name of the Director Designation Category Committee 

Meetings held 
during the 
tenure of 
Director 

on the Committee 

Commit
tee 
Meeting
s 
Attende
d 

*Mr. Nitin Kumar Radheshyam 
Sharma (DIN 06442840) 

Chairman Non- Executive 
Independent Director 

1 1 

Mr. Gaurav Jain (DIN 
06794973) 

Member Executive Director 1 1 

Mrs. Indira Dhariwal (DIN 
02524743) 

Member Non- Executive 
Independent Director 

1 1 

 
8) General Body Meetings: 

A. Location and time for the last three AGMs: 
Year Date Venue Time Special 

Resolution 
2021-22 29th September, 2022 72, Telipada, kaneri, bhiwandi Thane MS 

421302 
03.30 
P.M. 

Nil 

2022-23 25th August 2023 72, Telipada, kaneri, bhiwandi Thane MS 
421302 

2.30 P.M. Yes 

2023-24 27th September, 
2024 

117, V. Mall Thakur 
Complex, Kandivali East Mumbai 401 101 

03.30 
P.M 

Nil 

 
All the Resolutions set out in the Notices were passed by the Shareholders. 

B. During the year under review, the Company has passed any Special Resolution through postal ballot as 
per  the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under. 

C. At this meeting also there are Special Resolution that require to be passed by way of Postal Ballot. 



 

  

 

9) Means of Communication: 
Quarterly, Half- yearly and Annual Financial Results of the Company are communicated to the Stock 
Exchanges immediately after the same are considered by the Board and are published in the all India editions 
of (i) Financial Express (English) (ii) Mumbai Mitra (Marathi) – Marathi Edition. The results and official 
news releases of the Company are also made available on the Company’s website i.e. swadeshiglobal.com. 

 

10) General Shareholder’s Information: 
 

A AGM date, time and venue: 27th September, 2025 at 03.30 P.M. at the Registered Office 
of the Company at 303, Apollo Arcade, Prem Co-op Soc 
Ltd, R.K. Singh Marg, Mogra Pada, Andheri East, Mumbai 
400069  

B Financial Year 1st April 2024 to 31st March 2025 

C Listing on Stock Exchanges BSE Limited - P.J. Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai 
400001 

D The company has paid listing fees for the year 2025-26 stock exchanges 

E Stock Code: BSE- 506863 
F Date of Book Closure 20th September 2025 to 27th September, 2025 

G Dividend Payment Date No Dividend has been recommended by the Board 
of Directors of the Company for the year. 

H Performance in comparison to Broad- 
based indices such at BSE Sensex 

As against a rise of 24.85% (in BSE Sensex during 
the year (58991.52:73651.35), the price of equity shares 
of the   Company has Decrease by -33.76%.(2.10:1.57) 

I Registrar and Transfer Agents MUFG Intime India Private Limited  

(Formely known as Link Intime India Private Limited) 
C-101, 1stFloor, 247 Park, Lal Bahadur Shastri Marg, 
Vikhroli (West), Mumbai- 400083 
Tel: 022-25963838 Fax: 022-25946969 
E-mail: mumbai@linkintime.co.in 

J Address of Correspondence 303, Apollo Aracade, R K Singh Marg, Andheri 
East, Mumbai - 400069 
Mail:compliance@swadeshiglobal.com and 
swadeshiindltd@gmail.com 
WebSite: www.swadeshiglobal.com 

K Commodity price risk or foreign 
exchange risk and hedging activities 

Not applicable 

L Plant Locations: Not applicable 

M. Market Price Data: 
Monthly High and Low quotations along with the volume of shares traded at Bombay Stock Exchange 
Ltd during the year ended 31st March 2025: 
 

Month &Year BSE 
High Low Volume 

Apr 24 2.10 2.10 5244 
May 24 2.20 2.10 5228 
Jun 24 2.31 2.20 9225 
Jul 24 2.42 2.31 16684 
Aug 24 2.54 2.42 9619 
Sep 24 2.66 2.54 28307 
Oct 24 2.66 2.66 2840 
Nov 24 2.79 2.66 3757 
Dec 24 2.92 2.79 9839 
Jan 25 2.92 2.92 4558 
Feb 25 3.06 2.92 637 
Mar 25 5.69 3.06 97012 

N. Dematerialisation of Shares and liquidity 
 

The Company shares are traded compulsorily in dematerialized form. As on March 31, 2025 the details of the 



 

  

 

shares of the Company held in physical and demat form are given below: 

 

 Particulars No. of Shares % to the Capital 
Shares held in Physical Form 3,68,423 3.40% 

Shares held in Demat Form 1,04,49,527 96.60% 
TOTAL 1,08,17,950 100.00% 

 
ISIN No. of the Company's Equity Shares in Demat Form: INE716M01034 Depository Connectivity: NSDL 
and    CDSL 



 

  

 

 

O. Distribution of Share Holdings: 

 
 
No. of 
Equity 
Shares 
Held 

As on 31.03.2025 As on 31.03.2024 

No. of 
share 
holders 

% of Share 
holders 

No. of 
Shares 

% of 
Share 
holding 

No. of 
share 
holders 

% of Share 
holders 

No. of 
Shares 

% of 
Share 
holding 

01-500 9743 92.4383 997583 9.2216 10041 92.2123 1024842 9.4735 
501-1000 416 3.9469 340164 3.1444 434 3.9857 355014 3.2817 
1000-
2000 162 1.5370 247831 2.2909 

174 1.5979 267129 2.4693 

2000-
3000 73 0.6926 186626 1.7252 

80 0.7347 202664 1.8734 

3000-
4000 20 0.1898 70900 0.6554 

20 0.1837 69946 0.6456 

4001-
5000 22 0.2087 104911 0.9698 

21 0.1929 100539 0.9294 

5001-
10000 37 0.3510 269890 2.4948 

42 0.3857 309236 2.8585 

10001-
and above 67 0.6357 8600045 79.4979 

77 0.7071 8488580 78.4675 

Total 10540 100 10817950 100 10483 100.00 10817950 100.00 

P. Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/warrants or any convertible instruments, conversion date and likely 
impact on equity 

We have no GDRs/ADRs or any commercial instrument. 

11) Other Disclosures 
a) Transactions with related parties, as per requirements of Accounting Standard 18, are disclosed in 

notes to accounts annexed to the financial statements. 

b) There are no materially significant transactions with the related parties viz. Promoters, Directors or 
the Management, or their relatives or Subsidiaries that had potential conflict with the Company’s 
interest. Suitable disclosure as required by the Accounting Standard (AS 18) has been made in the 
Annual Report. The Related Party Transactions Policy as approved by the Board is uploaded on the 
Company’s website at www.swadeshiglobal.com 

c) There are no pecuniary relationships or transactions of Non-Executive Directors vis-à-vis the 
Company which has potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large. 

d) The Company has in place a mechanism to inform the Board members about the Risk assessment and 
mitigation plans and periodical reviews to ensure that the critical risks are controlled by the executive 
management. 

e) During the year ended 31st March 2025, the Company does not have any material listed/unlisted 
subsidiary companies as defined in Regulation 16 of the Listing Regulations. The Company has 
framed the policy for determining material subsidiary as required by under Regulation 16 of the 
Listing Regulation and the same is disclosed on the Company’s website. 

f) The Independent Directors have confirmed that they meet the criteria of ‘Independence’ as stipulated 
under the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations. 

g) The Company has implemented the mandatory requirements of Corporate Governance as set out in 
the Listing Regulations. In respect of compliance with the non-mandatory requirements, the internal 
auditor reports directly to the Audit Committee as well as Board. 

h) Compliance Certificate as required under as stipulated in Chapter IV of Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 obtained from 
Practicing Company Secretary, certifying the Compliance by the Company with the provisions of 
Corporate Governance of the Listing Regulations is given as an Annexure to this Report. 



 

  

 

 
 
 

DECLARATION REGARDING CODE OF CONDUCT UNDER REGULATION 26(3) SEBI (LISTING 
OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURES REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS 2015. 

A Code of Conduct for the Directors and Senior Management Personnel has already been approved by the Board 
of Directors of the Company. As stipulated under the provisions of regulations 17(8) of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, all the Directors andthe designated personnel in the 
Senior Management of the Company have affirmed compliance with the said code for the period ended 31stMarch 
2025. 

 
   Sd/- 

Lakrishna Sharma: 
(DIN: 09527277) 
 Director 
 
Date: 04.09.2025  
Place: Mumbai 

 
 
 

  



 

  

 

 
CEO / CFO CERTIFICATE UNDER PART B OF SCHEDULE II OF SEBI (LISTINGOBLIGATIONS AND 

DISCLOSURES REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS 2015. 
 
To, 
The Board of Directors 
Swadeshi Industries and Leasing Limited 
1. I have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement of Swadeshi Industries and Leasing 

Limited for the period ended 31st March 2025 and to the best of our knowledge and belief: 

(i) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain 
statements that might be misleading; 

(ii) these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are 
incompliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

2. There are, to the best of my knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the  
year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s Code of Conduct. 

3. I accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and we have 
evaluated the effectiveness of Company’s internal control systems pertaining to financial reporting. I have not 
come across any reportable deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls. 

4. I have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee: 
(i) that there are no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year; 
(ii) that there are no significant changes in accounting policies during the year; and 
(iii) that there are no instances of significant fraud of which I have become aware. 

 
Yours sincerely, 
 
Sd/- 
(Vikas Kushalchand Sanklecha) 
 Chief Financial Officer 
 
Date: 04.09.2025  
Place: Mumbai 



 

  

 

 
 
 

AUDITORS CERTIFICATE REGARDING COMPLIANCE OF CONDITIONS OF 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 

To, 

The Members 

SWADESHI INDUSTRIES AND LEASING LIMITED 

303, Apollo Arcade, Prem Co-op Soc Ltd,  

R.K. Singh Marg, Mogra Pada,  

Andheri East, Mumbai – 400069 

 

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by SWADESHI INDUSTRIES 

AND LEASING LIMITED (the “Company”), for the year ended 31st March 2025, as stipulated in regulations 

Part C of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our 

examination was limited to the review of the procedures and implementation thereof adopted by the 

Company for ensuring compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor 

an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company. 

 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to our examination of the relevant records 

and the explanations given to us and the representations made by the Directors and the Management, we 

certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in 

Regulations 17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) of regulation 46(2) and paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule V of the 

SEBI Listing Regulations during the year ended March 31, 2025. 

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of 

the efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

For SINDHU NAIR & ASSOCIATES 

Sd/- 

(SINDHU G NAIR) 
Practicing Company secretary  
Proprietor 
(FCS-7938, CP-8046) 
UDIN: F007938G001143787 
 

Place: Mumbai 
Date  : 02-09-2025 



 

  

 

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 
 
To,  
The Members of  
SWADESHI INDUSTRIES AND LEASING LIMITED  
303, Apollo Arcade, Prem Co-op Soc Ltd,  
R.K. Singh Marg, Mogra Pada,  
Andheri East, Mumbai – 400069 
 

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of 

SWADESHI INDUSTRIES AND LEASING LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), having CIN 

L46309MH1983PLC031246 and having registered office at 303, Apollo Arcade, Prem Co-op Soc Ltd, R.K. 

Singh Marg, Mogra Pada, Andheri East, Mumbai – 400069, produced before me by the Company for the 

purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub 

clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015. 

 

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors 

Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations 

furnished to me by the Company and its officers, I hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of 

the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31st March, 2025, have been debarred or 

disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory Authority. 

 
Sr. No. Name of Director DIN Date of Appointment 

in the Company 
 

1. Indira Dhariwal (Director)   
 

02524743 28/05/2019  

2. Krishna Kamalkishor Vyas  (Director)  07444324 19/02/2016 
 

3. Nitinkumar Radheshyam Sharma (Director) 
 

06442840 26/07/2023 

    
4. Jayshree Radheshyam Sharma (Additional 

Director) 
 

02754812 29/10/2024 

5. Lalkrishna Sharma (Additional Director) 
 

09527277 29/10/2024 

6. Nitesh Kumar (Additional Director) 09825886 29/10/2024 
 
Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of 
the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our 
verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the 
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 
 

For SINDHU NAIR & ASSOCIATES 
 
 

Sd/- 

(SINDHU G NAIR) 
Practicing Company secretary 
Proprietor  
(FCS- 7938, CP- 8046) 
UDIN: F007938G001143743 
Place: Mumbai 
Date : 02-09-2025 
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Annexure 5 

 

Nomination & Remuneration Policy 

 

I. OBJECTIVE: 

 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC or the Committee) has formulated the Nomination & 
Remuneration Policy in compliance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the applicable rules 
thereto and Regulation 19(4) read with Part D of Schedule II under the Listing Regulations, as amended from 
time to time. This policy is mainly focused on nomination and remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial 
Personnel and Senior Management. 
The objective of the policy is to ensure that: 

 the Board is being guided in relation to appointment and removal of Directors, Key Managerial 
Personnel (KMP) and Senior Management including Department head; 

 the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate 
Directors of the quality required to run the company successfully; 

 relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance 
benchmarks; and 

 Remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and senior management involves a balance 
between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate 
to the working of the company and its goals. 

 

II. DEFINITIONS 
Key definitions of terms used in this Policy are as follows: 

a. Act means the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder, as amended from time to time. 

b. Listing Regulations means SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 as amended from time to time. 

c. Board means Board of Directors of the Company. 

d. Directors mean Directors of the Company. 

e. Key Managerial Personnel means 
I. Chief Executive Officer or the Managing Director or the Manager; 

II. Whole-time director; 
III. Chief Financial Officer; 
IV. Company Secretary; and 
V. such other officer as may be prescribed. 

f. Senior Management means personnel of the company who are members of its core management 
team excluding the Board of Directors including Functional Heads. 

 

III. ROLE OF COMMITTEE 

Matters to be dealt with, perused and recommended to the Board by the Nomination and    r  emuneration 
Committee 
The Committee shall: 

i. Periodically reviewing the size and composition of the Board to ensure that it is structured in such a 
manner which enables to take appropriate decision in the best interest of the Company as a whole; 

ii. Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director 
and recommending candidates to the Board as and when need arises keeping in view the Board 
structure and expertise/experience required; 

iii. Establish and on regular basis review the succession plan of the Board, KMPs and Senior Executives; 
iv. Identify persons who are qualified to become Director and persons who may be appointed in Key 

Managerial and Senior Management positions in accordance with the criteria laid down in this 
policy; 

v. To formulate criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board; 
vi. Recommend to the Board performance criteria for the Directors, KMPs and Senior Management; 

vii. Recommend to the Board, appointment and removal of Director, KMP and Senior Management 
Personnel and their remuneration; 

viii. Help the Board to formulate and ensure the Board nomination process keeping in mind the diversity of 
gender, expertise, experience and Board structure; 
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ix. Review and recommend to the Board: 
a. The Remuneration Policy for all employees including KMPs and Senior 

Management including various 
b. components of remuneration whether fix or variable, performance reward, retirement benefits, 
c. Remuneration of the Executive Directors and KMPs, 

d. Remuneration of Non Executive Directors including Chairman, as a whole and 
individually and sitting 

e. fees to be paid for attending the meeting of the Board and Committee thereof, and 
f. Equity based incentive Schemes, 

x. To retain, motivate and promote talent and to ensure long term sustainability of talented managerial 
persons and create competitive advantage; and 

xi. To carry out any other function as is mandated by the Board from time to time and / or enforced by any 
statutory notification, amendment or modification, as may be applicable; 

xii. Devising a policy on diversity of the Board of Directors; 
xiii. Aligning key executive and board remuneration with the longer term interests of the Company and its 

shareholders; 
xiv. Ensuring a transparent board nomination process with the diversity of thought, experience, 

knowledge, perspective and gender in the Board; 
xv. To carry out any other functions as authorized by the Board from time to time or as enforced by 

statutory/ regulatory authorities; 
xvi. To perform such other functions as may be necessary or appropriate for the performance of its duties; 
 

1. Policy for appointment and removal of Director, KMP and Senior Management 
 

i. Appointment criteria and qualifications 
a. The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and experience of the 

person for appointment as Director, KMP or at Senior Management level and recommend to the Board 
his / her appointment, as per Company’s Policy. 

b. A person to be recommended to the Board should be a man with integrity, possess adequate 
qualification, expertise and experience for the position he / she is considered for appointment and 
industry in which Company operate. The Committee has discretion to decide whether qualification, 
expertise and experience possessed by a person is sufficient / satisfactory for the concerned position. 

c. A person, to be appointed as Director, should possess impeccable reputation for integrity, deep 
expertise and insights in sectors/areas relevant to the Company, ability to contribute to the Company’s 
growth, complementary skills in relation to the other Board members. 

d. The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person as Managing Director 
and/or Whole-time Director who has attained the age of seventy years. Provided that the term of the 
person holding this position may be extended beyond the age of seventy years with the approval of 
shareholders by passing a special resolution based on the explanatory statement annexed to the notice 
for such motion indicating the justification for extension of appointment beyond seventy years. 

e. A whole-time KMP of the Company shall not hold office in more than one Company except in its 
Subsidiary Company at the same time. However, a whole-time KMP can be appointed as a Director in 
any Company with the permission of the Board of Directors of the Company. 
 

ii. Term / Tenure 
a) Managing Director/Whole-time Director: 

The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its, Managing Director and CEO or 
Executive/Whole- time Director for a term not exceeding five years at a time. No re- appointment 
shall be made earlier than one year before the expiry of term. 

b) Independent Director: 
• An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive years on the Board of the 

Company and will be eligible for re-appointment on passing of a special resolution by the Company 
and disclosure of such appointment in the Board's report. 

• No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms, but such Independent 
Director shall be eligible for appointment after expiry of three years of ceasing to become an 
Independent Director provided that an Independent Director shall not, during the said period of three 
years, be appointed in or be associated with the Company in any other capacity, either directly or 
indirectly. 
At the time of appointment of Independent Director it should be ensured that number of Boards on 
which such Independent Director serves is restricted to seven Listed Companies as an Independent 
Director and three Listed Companies as an Independent Director in case such person is serving as a 
Whole-time Director of a Listed Company or such other number as may be prescribed under the Act. 

iii. Evaluation 
The Committee shall carry out evaluation of performance of every Director, KMP and Senior 
Management Personnel at regular interval (yearly) or at such intervals as may be considered necessary. 
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iv. Removal 
The Committee may recommend to the Board, with reasons recorded in writing, removal of a 
Director, KMP or Senior Management Personnel subject to the provisions and compliance of the Act, 
rules and regulations and the policy of the Company. 
 

 
v. Retirement 

The Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall retire as per the term of appointment, 
provisions of the Act, Listing Regulations and the Policies of the Company. The Board will have the 
discretion to retain the Director, KMP, Senior Management Personnel in the same 
position/remuneration or otherwise even after attaining the retirement age, for the benefit of the 
Company subject to compliance of provisions of the Act and Listing Regulations. 

 
2. Policy relating to the Remuneration for the Managing Director, Whole-time Director, KMP and 

Senior Management Personnel 
 
i. General: 
a) The remuneration / compensation / commission / fees etc. to be paid to the Managing Director, 

Whole- time Director, other Directors, KMP and Senior Management Personnel will be determined 
by the Committee and recommended to the Board for approval which shall be subject to the prior/post 
approval of the shareholders of the Company or Central Government, wherever required. 

b) The remuneration and commission to be paid to the Managing Director, Whole-time Director shall be 
in accordance with the percentage / slabs / conditions laid down in the Articles of Association of the 
Company and as per the provisions of the Act. 

c) Increments to the existing remuneration/ compensation structure may be recommended by the 
Committee to the Board which should be within the slabs approved by the Shareholders in the case of 
Managing Director, Whole-time Director. 

d) Where any insurance is taken by the Company on behalf of its Managing Director, Whole-time 
Director, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, the Company Secretary and any other 
employees for indemnifying them against any liability, the premium paid on such insurance shall not 
be treated as part of the remuneration. 
 

ii. Remuneration to Managing Director/Whole-time Directors: 
a) Fixed pay: 

The Managing Director/ Whole-time Director/ KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall be 
eligible for a monthly remuneration as may be approved by the Board on the recommendation of the 
Committee. The breakup of the pay scale and quantum of perquisites including, employer’s 
contribution to P.F, pension scheme, medical expenses, club fees etc. shall be decided and approved 
by the Board on the recommendation of the Committee, subject to the approval of the shareholders or 
Central Government, wherever required. 

b) Minimum Remuneration: 
If, in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the Company shall 
pay remuneration to its Managing Director, Whole-time Director in accordance with the provisions of 
Schedule V of the Act and if it is not able to comply with such provisions, with the previous approval 
of the Central Government. 

c) Provisions for excess remuneration: 
If any Managing Director, Whole-time Director draws or receives, directly or indirectly by way of 
remuneration any such sums in excess of the limits prescribed under the Act or without the 
approval of the shareholders or the Central Government, where required, he / she shall refund such 
sums to the Company and until such sum is refunded, hold it in trust for the Company. The 
Company shall not waive recovery of such sum refundable to it unless permitted by the shareholder or 
Central Government. 
 

iii. Remuneration to Non- Executive / Independent Director: 
a) Sitting Fees: 

The Non- Executive / Independent Director may receive remuneration by way of fees for attending 
meetings of Board or Committee thereof provided that the amount of sitting fees shall be such as may 
be recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board of 
Directors. However, the amount of such fees shall not exceed Rs. 1 Lac per meeting of the Board or 
Committee attended by Director or such other amount as may be prescribed by the Central 
Government from time to time. 

b) Remuneration / Commission: 
All the remuneration of the Non-Executive / Independent Directors (excluding remuneration for 
attending meetings as prescribed under Section 197 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013) shall be subject 
to ceiling/ limits as provided under Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under or any other 
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enactment for the time being in force. The amount of such remuneration shall be such as may be 
recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board of 
Directors or shareholders, as the case may be. 

c) Stock Options: 
An Independent Director shall not be eligible to get Stock Options and also shall not be eligible to 
participate in any share based payment schemes of the Company. 
 
 

d) Remuneration for services of Professional Nature: 
Any remuneration paid to Non- Executive Directors for services rendered which are of professional 
in nature shall not be considered as part of the remuneration for the purposes of clause (b) above if the 
following conditions are satisfied: 

 

i) The Services are rendered by such Director in his/her capacity as the professional; and 

ii) In the opinion of the Committee, the Director possesses the requisite qualification for thepractice 
of that profession. 

 
iv. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management: 

a) The remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management shall consist of fixed 
pay and incentive pay, in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and in 
accordance with the Company’s Policy. 

b) The Nomination and Remuneration Committee or any other Committee to be constituted by the 
Company for the purpose of administering the Employee Stock Option/ Purchase Schemes, shall 
determine the stock options and other share based payments to be made to Key Managerial 
Personnel and Senior Management. 

c) The Fixed pay shall include monthly remuneration, employer’s contribution to Provident Fund, 
contribution to pension fund, pension schemes, etc. as decided from to time. 

d) The Incentive pay/performance linked pay shall be decided based on the extent of achievement 
of the individual target/objective or performance of the Key Managerial Personnel and Senior 
Management and performance of the Company which will be decided annually or at such 
intervals as may be considered appropriate. 

 
3. Policy Review: 

The Policy is framed based on the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under and 
the requirement of Regulation 19(4) and Schedule II (Part D) of the Listing Regulations. In case of any 
subsequent changes in the provisions of the Act or any other Regulations which makes any of the 
provisions of this Policy inconsistent with the Act or any such Regulation, then the provisions of the Act 
or such Regulation would prevail over the Policy and the provisions in the Policy would be modified in 
due course to make it in consistent with the Act or such Regulation. 

The Committee shall review the Policy as and when any changes are to be incorporated in the Policy due 
to changes in the Act or such Regulation or felt necessary by the Committee. Any changes in the Policy 
shall be recommended by the Committee to the Board and shall be effective on approval of the Board. 

4. Implementation: 

• The Committee may issue guidelines, procedures, formats, reporting mechanism and manualsin 
supplement and for better implementation of this policy as considered appropriate. 

• The Committee may Delegate any of its powers to one or more of its members. 

 

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
 
 Sd/- 
 
 Lalkrishna Sharma  
 Director  
 (DIN: 09527277) 
 
Date :04.09.2025 

            Place: Mumbai 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
     

TO THE MEBERS OF 
SWADESHI INDUSTRIES AND LEASING LTD. 
 
Report on the Financial Statements   
 
Opinion   
 
We have audited the financial statements of SWADESHI INDUSTRIES & LEASING LIMITED (“the 
Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31st March 2025, and the statement of Profit and Loss 
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity, the Statement of Cash Flows and 
notes to the standalone Ind AS financial statements, for the year ended on that date, and a summary of the 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the standalone 
financial statements”). 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
standalone financial statements, give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") in the 
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standard prescribed 
under section 133 of the act read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended, ("Ind 
AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the company as at 31 
March, 2025 and its Loss, total comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year 
ended on that date. 
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing ("SAs") specified under section 143(10) 
of the Companies Act. 2013 ("the Act"). Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the 
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Results section of our report. We are independent of the 
Company, in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the 
provisions of the Act, and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial results. 
 
Key Audit Matters   
 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of 
the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our 
audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not 
provide a separate opinion on these matters.  

 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements  
 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013  
(“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of state  of 
affairs (financial position), Profit or loss (financial Performance including other comprehensive income),  change 
in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally  accepted in 
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) the financial position, financial  performance and 
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted  in India, including 
the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the  Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014.  

 
This responsibility also includes the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the  
provision of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting the frauds  
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and  
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance  of internal financial 
control, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of  the accounting records, 
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a  true and fair view and are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.   
 
In preparing the financial statement, the Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing 
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern 
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and using the going concern basis of the accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the 
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.   
 
The Company's Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the company’s financial 
reporting process.   
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
   
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial results as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error 
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence 
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial results.   
 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:   
 
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statement, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.   
 
• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our 
opinion whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in 
place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.   
 
• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures in the financial results made by the Management and Board of Directors.   
 
• Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we 
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related 
disclosure in the financial results or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusion is 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However future events or conditions 
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.  
 
• Evaluate the overall presentations, structure and content of the financial results, including the disclosers, and 
whether the financial results represent the underlying transaction and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentations.   

 
• Materiality is the magnitude at misstatements in the Statement that, individually or in aggregate, makes it 

probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Statement may be influenced. 
We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in 

(i)  Planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and  
(ii) To evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Statement.   

 
 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that 
we identify during our audit.   
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical  
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters  that 
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.   

 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

 
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor‟s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure- A”, a 
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.  
 
2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:  
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(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.  
 
(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books.  
 
(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of 
Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of 
account.  
 
(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 
of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.  
 
(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2024 and taken on 
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2024, from being 
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.  
 
(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure- B”. Our report 
expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal 
financial controls over financial reporting.  
 
(g) With respect to other matter to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to 
the explanations given to us:  
 
i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.  
 
ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any 
material foreseeable losses.  
 
iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund 
by the Company.  
 
Iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in 
the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or 
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), 
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, 
that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in 
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;  
 
(b)The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the 
notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including 
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or 
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and  
 
(c) Based on such audit procedures, we have obtained reasonable and appropriate evidence, nothing has come to 
our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material 
misstatement.  
 
v. No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the company, hence Section 123 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 is not applicable to the company.  
 
vi. Based on examination, which includes test checks, the Company has used accounting software for 
maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended on 31st March 2024 which has a feature of 
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has been operated throughout the year for all relevant 
transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit and the audit trail feature has not 
been tampered with.   
 
Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting software systems for 
maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31,2025 which have the feature of recording 
audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded 
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in the software systems. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of the audit 
trail feature being tampered with and the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory 
requirements for record retention. 
 
 

   For G C A S & Associates LLP 
   Chartered Accountants 
   FRN 327601E 
 
   Sd/- 
    
   CA Parag Gudhka 
   Partner 
   M No. 143380 
   UDIN: 25143380BMHUSC1168 
   Date: 30/05/2025 

 
The Annexure referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading of “Report on other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements” of our report of even date to the members of SWADESHI INDUSTRIES & LEASING LIMITED 
for the year ended on 31st March 2025. 
  
(i) (a)   (A) As per information and explanation given to us, the company is maintaining proper records 
showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of Property plant and equipment;  
 
(B) As per information and explanation given to us, the company does not have any Intangible asset hence this 
point is not applicable to the company;  
 
(b) As per information and explanation given to us, physical verification of Property Plant and equipment has 
been conducted at regular interval in a year by the management and no material discrepancies were noticed 
during the course of verification;  
 
(c) According to information and explanation given to us, the company does not hold any immovable property 
during the year dealt with by this report. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(i)(c) is not applicable to the 
company; 
 
(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records 
of the Company, the Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including Right-of-use assets) 
or Intangible assets or both during the year. Accordingly, provisions of sub-clause (i)(d) of para 3 of this order is 
not applicable to the company; 
 
(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records 
of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami 
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder. 
Accordingly, provisions of sub-clause (i)(e) of para 3 of this order is not applicable to the company; 
   
(ii) (a) As per information and explanation given to us, as at the year ended 31.03.2025, the company 
does not have inventory hence physical verification of inventory is not applicable to the company;  
 
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records 
of the Company, the company has not taken any working capital loan from financial institutions exceeding Rs. 5 
Crores on the basis of security of current assets during the period covered by this report. Accordingly, the 
provisions of sub-clause (ii)(b) of para 3 of the order are not applicable. 
 
(iii) (a) A. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any 
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures. Accordingly, provisions of sub-clause (iii)(a)(A) of para 3 of the order 
are not 
applicable. 
 
B. Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations given to us, the 
Company has not granted loans to parties other than subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates.  
 
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures conducted by 
us, there are no loans given by the Company. Accordingly, provisions of sub-clause (iii) (b) of para 3 of this 
order is not 
applicable. 
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(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records 
of the Company, there are no loans given by the Company. Accordingly, provisions of sub-clause (iii)(c) of para 
3 of this order is not applicable. 
 
(d) According to the information and explanations provided to us there is no loan overdue amount for more than 
ninety days in respect of loans given. 
 
(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records 
of the Company, there is no loan given falling due during the year, which has been renewed or extended or fresh 
loans given to settle the overdue of existing loans given to the same party. 
 
(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the financial 
statements of the Company, we report that the Company does not have any subsidiaries as defined under the 
Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the requirement of provision of sub clause (ix)(f) of para 3 
of the order are not applicable; 
 
(iv) According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the provisions of 
section 185 and section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 to the extent applicable in respect of loans, advances, 
guarantees and securities so given; 
 
(v)According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted public deposits and the 
provision of section 73 to 76 or other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed 
thereunder are not applicable to the Company; 
 
(vi) According to information and explanations given to us, the Company is not liable to maintain cost records as 
prescribed under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013; 
 
(vii) (a) According to information and explanations given to us, the company is generally regular in depositing 
undisputed statutory dues including income-tax and any other applicable statutory dues to the appropriate 
authorities and there are no outstanding statutory dues as on the last day of the financial year concerned for a 
period of more than six months from the date, they became payable. 
 
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there is no amount payable in respect statutory 
dues referred to in sub- clause (a) above, which has been deposited on account of dispute. 
 
(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 
records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded 
as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961 as income during the 
year. 
 
(xi) (a) According to information and explanations given to us, the company has not obtained any loans and 
borrowings from any financial institution, bank, government or debenture holders, thus there arises no question 
of default in repayment;  
 
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records 
of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or 
government or government authority.  
 
(c) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company has not 
obtained any term loans and thus there arise no question to divert such loans.  
 
(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance sheet 
of the Company, we report that no funds have been raised on short-term basis and thus there arise no question to 
utilise the same for long-term purposes.  
 
(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the financial 
statements of the Company, we report that the Company does have not any subsidiaries, associates or joint 
ventures. Thus, there arise question to take fund from any persons or entities to meet their obligation. 
Accordingly, provisions of sub-clause (ix)(e) of para 3 of the order are not applicable.  
 
(f) According to the information and explanations given to us on an overall examination of the financial 
statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not raised loan during the year on the pledge of 
securities held in its subsidiaries. 
 
(x) (a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including 
debt instruments). Accordingly, provisions of sub- clause (x)(a) of para 3 of the order are not applicable.  
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records 
of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or 
partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, provisions of sub- clause (x)(b) of para 3 of the order 
are not applicable. 
 
(xi) (a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, considering the principles of materiality outlined in Standards on Auditing, we report 
that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the course of the audit. 
 
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government. 
 
(c) According to the Information and explanations given to us, there are no whistle blower complaints received 
by the company during the year. 
 
(xii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. 
Accordingly, provisions of sub- clause (xii) of para 3 of the order are not applicable. 
 
(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions with related 
parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, and the 
details of the related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the 
applicable Indian Accounting Standards. 
 
(xiv) (a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion, the 
Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business; 
 
(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period under audit. 
 
(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered 
into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors and hence, provisions of 
Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company. 
 
(xvi) (a) According to information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Non- Banking Financial 
Company and is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 
 
(b) According to information and explanations given to us, the company has not conducted any Non-Banking 
Financial or Housing Finance activities without a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank 
of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 
 
(c) According to information and explanations given to us, the company is not a Core Investment Company 
(CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, provisions of sub-clause 
(xvi) (c) of para 3 of the order are not applicable. 
 
(d) According to information and explanations given to us, the Group does not have any CIC as part of the 
Group. Accordingly, provisions of sub-clause (xvi) (d) of para 3 of the order are not applicable. 
 
(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses during the year covered by this report and also in the 
immediately preceding year. 
 
(xviii) There has been resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and we have taken into consideration 
the issues, objections or concerns raised by the outgoing auditors. 
 
(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing 
and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information 
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and 
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which 
causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is 
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of 
one year from the balance sheet date. 
 
(xx) According to the information and explanations given to us, provisions of section 135 of the companies Act, 
2013 are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, provisions of sub-clause (xx) of para 3 of the order are not 
applicable. 
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(xxi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any subsidiaries, 
associates and joint ventures. Accordingly, provisions of sub-clause (xxi) of para 3 of the order are not 
applicable. 

 
            For G C A S & Associates LLP 
          Chartered Accountants 
          FRN 327601E 
          

CA Parag Gudhka 
Partner 
M No. 143380 
UDIN: 25143380BMHUSC1168 
Date: 30/05/2025  

Annexure ‘B’ 
 
TO THE AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

 

In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company as at end for the year ended 31st March 
2025, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of SWADESHI 
INDUSTRIES & LEASING LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as “Company”), as of that date. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Internal Financial Controls 
 
The respective management of the company, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Control over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the 
Guidance Note”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its 
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection 
of fraud and errors, the accuracy and completeness of accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards 
on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 to the extent applicable to an audit of 
internal financial controls, with reference to the financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and 
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material aspects. 
 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
control system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
We believe that the audit evidences we have obtained for the company to which we are independent auditors is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls 
system with reference to financial statements. 
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements. 
 
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements 
 
A Company’s internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements 
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company’s internal 
financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that: -  
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(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions 
and dispositions of the assets of the Company;  
 
(2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and the receipt and expenditures of the 
Company are being only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and  
 
(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or 
disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.  
 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements  
 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or 
fraud may occur and could not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial control 
with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls 
over financial reporting may became inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the company, have, in all material aspects, an adequate internal financial controls system with 
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating 
effectively as at 31st March 2024, based on “the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 
criteria considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”. 

 
 

For G C A S & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN 327601E 
 
Sd/- 
CA Parag Gudhka 
Partner 
M No. 143380 
UDIN: 25143380BMHUSC1168 
Date: 30/05/2025 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



F.Y. 2024-25

(Amount in Rs.)

 As at  As at 
31.03.2025 31.03.2024

I. ASSETS
1 Non-current assets

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3 1,12,925.00               3,53,28,747.00          
(b) Right-of-Use Assets -                               -                               
(c) Financial assets

(i) Investments
(ii) Other Financial Assets

(d) Deferred tax assets (Net) 4 7,15,563.00               6,36,882.00               
(e) Other non-current assets

2 Current assets
(a) Inventories
(b) Finanacial Assets

(i) Trade receivables 5 5,27,66,869.00          13,11,859.00             
(ii) Cash and Cash equivalents 6 1,59,279.00               1,98,849.00               
(iii) Loans 7 1,89,71,074.00          3,83,22,226.00          
(iv) Other Financial Assets 8 2,65,00,000.00          -                               

(c) Other Current Assets 9 47,70,909.00             1,87,21,536.00          
TOTAL 10,39,96,619.00       9,45,20,099.00          

II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Shareholders’ funds

(a) Equity Share capital 10 10,81,79,500.00        10,81,79,500.00        
(b) Other Equity 11 -1,85,62,429.00        -2,88,48,195.00        

Total Equity 8,96,17,071.00          7,93,31,305.00          

2 Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

(a) Long-term borrowings
(b) Lease Liabilities

Provisions
Other Non Current Liabilities

3 Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

(a) Borrowings 12 1,50,000.00               
(b) Lease liabilities -                               -                               
(c) Trade payables

-                               -                               

13 1,19,44,514.00          49,30,036.00             

(c) Other Financial Liabilities 14 22,85,034.00             5,62,758.00               
4 Other Current Liabilities 15 -                               96,96,000.00             
5 Provisions

TOTAL 10,39,96,619.00       9,45,20,099.00          
Significant Accounting Policies 2

(As per our report of even date)                                       

For G C A S & Associates LLP FOR Swadeshi Industries & Leasing Limited
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 327601E

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Parag Gudhka Jayshree Sharma Lalkrishna Sharma
Designated Partner Executive Director Executive Director
Membership No. 143380 DIN: 02754812 DIN: 09527277

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: 30-May-2025 Date: 30-May-2025 Date: 30-May-2025

Sd/- Sd/-
CS Shruti Jain Vikas Jain
Company Secretary CFO
Place: Mumbai
Date: 30-May-2025

Total outstanding dues of micro and small 
enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than 
micro and small enterprises

Swadeshi Industries & Leasing Limited
CIN : L45209MH1983PLC031246

BALANCE SHEET AS AT March 31, 2025

Particulars
 Note 
No.



F.Y. 2024-25

(Amount in Rs.)

 Year ended  Year ended 
31.03.2025 31.03.2024

I. Revenue from operations 16 15,89,56,031.00        2,46,40,346.00           
II. Other income 17 86,78,935.00              14,85,394.00              

III. Total Income (I + II) 16,76,34,966.00        2,61,25,740.00          

IV. Expenses:
Purchases of Stock in Trade 18 15,29,51,678.00        2,44,93,447.00           
Employee benefits expense 19 16,15,700.00              6,08,000.00                
Finance costs 20 7,185.00                      2,552.00                      
Depreciation and Amortization expense 3 28,204.00                   31,723.00                   
Other expenses 21 12,73,836.00              16,03,809.00              

Total expenses 15,58,76,603.00        2,67,39,531.00          

 Profit before prior period, exceptional and extraordinary items 
and tax (III-IV) 1,17,58,363.00           (6,13,791.00)               
Prior Period Income/(Expenses) -                                -                                

V.  Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax 1,17,58,363.00           (6,13,791.00)               

VI.  Exceptional items -                                -                                

VII.  Profit before extraordinary items and tax (V - VI) 1,17,58,363.00           (6,13,791.00)               

VIII.  Extraordinary Items -                                -                                

IX. Profit before tax (VII- VIII) 1,17,58,363.00           (6,13,791.00)               

X. Tax expense:
(1) Current tax (14,86,626.00)             -                                
(2) Deferred tax 78,681.00                   
(3) Short/Excess Provision of Earlier Year (64,652.00)                  

XI.
Profit (Loss) for the period from continuing operations (after tax)

(IX-X) 1,02,85,766.00          (6,13,791.00)              

XII. Profit/(loss) from discontinuing operations -                                -                                
XIII. Tax expense of discontinuing operations -                                -                                
XIV. Profit/(loss) from Discontinuing operations (after tax) (XII-XIII) -                                -                                

XV. Profit (Loss) for the period (XI + XIV) 1,02,85,766.00          (6,13,791.00)              

XVI. Other comprehensive income:
 Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent 
year 

 Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent year -                                -                                
 Total Other Comprehensive Income/(loss) -                               -                               

XVII. Total Comprehensive Income 1,02,85,766.00          (6,13,791.00)              

XVIII. Earnings per equity share: 22
(1) Basic 0.95                              (0.06)                            
(2) Diluted 0.95                              (0.06)                            
Significant Accounting Policies 2

(As per our report of even date)                                       

For G C A S & Associates LLP FOR Swadeshi Industries & Leasing Limited
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 327601E

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Parag Gudhka Jayshree Sharma Lalkrishna Sharma
Designated Partner Executive Director Executive Director
Membership No. 143380 DIN: 02754812 DIN: 09527277

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: 30-May-2025 Date: 30-May-2025 Date: 30-May-2025

Sd/- Sd/-
CS Shruti Jain Vikas Jain
Company Secretary CFO

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30-May-2025

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

Particulars  Note No. 

Swadeshi Industries & Leasing Limited
CIN : L45209MH1983PLC031246



Swadeshi Industries & Leasing Limited F.Y. 2024-25
CIN : L45209MH1983PLC031246

(Amount in Rs.)

A. Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Net Profit / (Loss) before extraordinary items and tax 1,17,58,363.00        (6,13,791.00)             
Adjusted for :
Depreciation and amortisation 28,204.00                 31,723.00                 
Finance costs 7,185.00                    2,552.00                    
Interest income (26,54,013.00)          (14,85,394.00)          
Gain on sale of Land (60,03,790.00)          
Allowance for Expected Credit Loss
Sundry Balances written off (21,132.00)                (86,43,546.00)          (14,51,119.00)           
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 31,14,817.00            (20,64,910.00)           

Change in Assets & Liabilities
(Increase) / Decrease Trade receivables        (5,14,55,010.00)             78,05,757.00 
(Increase) / Decrease Short-term loans and advances          1,93,51,152.00             45,38,106.00 
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Current Assets          1,39,50,627.00        (1,81,95,224.00)
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payables             70,35,610.00            (28,60,726.00)
Increase / (Decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities             17,22,276.00              (4,86,036.00)
Increase / (Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities            (96,96,000.00)             96,96,000.00 

(1,90,91,345.00)       4,97,877.00               
Cash Generated from Operation (1,59,76,528.00)       (15,67,033.00)           
Tax Expense (15,51,278.00)          -                              
Net Cashflow from Operating Activities (A) (1,75,27,806.00)       (A) (15,67,033.00)           

B. Cash Flow From Investing Activities
Capital expenditure on property, plant & equipment and intangible assets (62,382.00)                -                              
Interest Received 26,54,013.00            14,85,394.00            
Sale of Land 4,12,53,790.00        
Advance for Investment in Subsidary (2,65,00,000.00)       

Net Cashflow from Investing Activities (B) 1,73,45,421.00        (B) 14,85,394.00            

C. Cash Flow From Financing Activities

Payment of Finance Costs (7,185.00)                  (2,552.00)                  
Loans Taken 1,50,000.00              -                              

Net Cashflow from Financing Activities (C) 1,42,815.00              (C) (2,552.00)                   

Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) (39,570.00)                (84,191.00)                
Cash and Cash equivalent as at the commencement of the year 1,98,849.00              2,83,040.00               
Cash and Cash equivalent as at the End of the year 1,59,279.00              1,98,849.00              

(As per our report of even date)                                       
Sd/- Sd/-

For G C A S & Associates LLP Jayshree Sharma Lalkrishna Sharma -                               
Chartered Accountants Executive Director Executive Director
FRN: 327601E DIN: 02754812 DIN: 09527277

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Sd/- Date: 30-May-2025 Date: 30-May-2025
Parag Gudhka
Designated Partner Sd/- Sd/-
Membership No. 143380 CS Shruti Jain Vikas Jain

Company Secretary CFO
Place: Mumbai
Date: 30-May-2025

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30-May-2025

(a) The above Cash Flow Statement are prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in the Ind AS 7 on "Cash Flow Statements".
(b) Direct taxes paid are treated as arising from operating activities and are not bifurcated between investing and financing activities.
(c) The Cash Flow Statement reflects the combined cash flows pertaining to continuing and discounting operations.
(d) These earmarked account balances with banks can be utilised only for the specific identified purposes.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

For the year ended
31.03.2024

Particulars
For the year ended

31.03.2025



A Corporate information
Swadeshi Industries & Leasing Ltd (the ‘Company’) is a Company limited by share and domiciled
in India with its registered office located at 303, Apollo Arcade, R K Singhy Marg, Andheri east,
Mumbai 400069. The Company was incorporated on 30thSeptember, 1974, at Calcutta as a
Private Limited Company under the Companies Act, 1956 and converted into a Public Limited
Company on 31st October 1983 under Companies Act,1956 and its shares are Listed on Bombay
Stock Exchange, India(BSE Script Code-506863). It is engaged in the business of Trading of
various items.

A SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1 Basis of preparation and presentation 

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared to comply in all material respects
with the Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind AS") notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention with the
exception of certain financial assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value, on an
accrual basis of accounting.
All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current and non-current as per normal
operating cycle of the Company and other criteira set out in as per the guidance set out in
Schedule III to the Act. Based on nature of services, the Company ascertained its operating cycle
as 12 months for the purpose of current and non-current classification of asset and liabilities. 
The Company's financial statements are reported in Indian Rupees, which is also the Company’s
functional currency.

B Use of Estimates:

The preparation of the financial statements, in conformity with the Ind AS, requires the
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities
as at the date of financial statements and the results of operation during the reported period.
Although these estimates are based upon management’s best knowledge of current events and
actions, actual results could differ from these estimates which are recognised in the period in
which they are determined.

i) Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. The Company based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were
prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may
change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the
Company. Such changes are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes
are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

ii) Deferred tax assets
      In assessing the realisability of deferred income tax assets, management considers whether

some portion or all of the deferred income tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization
of deferred income tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during
the periods in which the temporary differences become deductible. Management considers the
scheduled reversals of deferred income tax liabilities, projected future taxable income, and tax
planning strategies in making this assessment. Based on the level of historical taxable income
and projections for future taxable income over the periods in which the deferred income tax
assets are deductible, management believes that the Company will not realize the benefits of
those deductible differences in the near future. The amount of the deferred income tax assets
considered realizable, however, could be reduced in the near term if estimates of future taxable
income during the carry forward period are reduced.

iii) Provisions
Provisions and liabilities are recongnised in the period when it becomes probable that there will be 
a future outflow of funds resulting from past operations or events and the amount of cash flow can
be realiably estimated .The timing of recongnition and quantification of the liability require
application of judgement to the existing facts and circumstances which can be subject to change.
The carrying amounts of provisions and liabilities are reviewed regualarly and revised to take
account of changing the facts and circumstances      

C Property, Plant and Equipment

i) Tangible Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost of acquisition including attributable interest and
finance costs, if any, till the date of acquisition/ installation of the assets less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Subsequent expenditure relating to
Property, Plant and Equipment is capitalised only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to the Statement of Profit
and Loss as incurred. The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the
financial statements, either on disposal or when retired from active use and the resultant gain or
loss are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Capital work-in-progress, representing expenditure incurred in respect of assets under
development and not ready for their intended use, are carried at cost. Cost includes related
acquisition expenses, construction cost, related borrowing cost and other direct expenditure.

ii) Intangible Assets
Intangible assets includes software which are not integral part of the hardware are stated at cost
less accumulated amortisation. Intangible assets under development represents expenditure
incurred in respect of softwares under devlopment and are carried at cost.

Assets acquired but not ready for use are classified under Capital work-in-progress or intangible
assets under development, as the case may be.

D Depreciation and Amortisation:

Swadeshi Industries & Leasing Limited
CIN :  L45209MH1983PLC031246

Accompanying notes to the financial statements for the Period ended March 31, 2025
Note 1 

Note 2



Swadeshi Industries & Leasing Limited
CIN :  L45209MH1983PLC031246

Accompanying notes to the financial statements for the Period ended March 31, 2025
Depreciation on all fixed assets, except Leasehold Improvements and intangible assets, is
provided on Written Down value method over the useful life of Asset and in the manner as
prescribed by Schedule II  of the Act.

E Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

i) Financial Assets

Initial Recognition
In the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), financial
assets are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular
way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to
purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent Measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories:

Financial Assets at Amortised Cost ( AC)

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held
within a business model with an objective to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash
flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate
("EIR") method. Impairment gains or losses arising on these assets are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value
Financial assets are measured at fair value through OCI if these financial assets are held within a
business model with an objective to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows or
to sell these financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition
of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Financial asset not measured at amortised cost or at fair value through OCI is carried at FVTPL.

F Impairment of Financial Assets:

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies the expected credit loss ("ECL") model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on financial assets and credit risk exposures.
The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade
receivables. Simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk.
Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date,
right from its initial recognition.
For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for
impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a
subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising
impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.
ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the group in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls),
discounted at the original EIR. Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a
portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date.
ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as
income/ expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

G De-recognition of Financial Assets
The Company de-recognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognizes its retained interest in the
assets and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. 
If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

b) Equity Instruments and Financial Liabilities 
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Equity Instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments which are issued for cash are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Equity instruments which are issued
for consideration other than cash are recorded at fair value of the equity instrument.

H Financial Liabilities
i) Initial Recognition



Swadeshi Industries & Leasing Limited
CIN :  L45209MH1983PLC031246

Accompanying notes to the financial statements for the Period ended March 31, 2025
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at FVPL, loans and
borrowings and payables as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction
costs.

ii) Subsequent Measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below

Financial liabilities at FVPL
Financial liabilities at FVPL include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at FVPL. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading
if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Gains or losses on liabilities
held for trading are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment
to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make
a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee
contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the
higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109
and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation. Amortisation is recognised as finance
income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the EIR method. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of the
borrowings in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance
costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
iii) De-recognition of Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as de-recognition of the original liability and
recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

iv) Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance
Sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

I Impairment of Non-Financial Assets 
As at each Balance Sheet date, the Company assesses whether there is an indication that a non-
financial asset may be impaired and also whether there is an indication of reversal of impairment
loss recognised in the previous periods. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required, the Company determines the recoverable amount and impairment
loss is recognised when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

Recoverable amount is determined:
- In case of an individual asset, at the higher of the assets' fair value less cost to sell and value in

use; and

- In case of cash generating unit (a group of assets that generates identified, independent cash
flows), at the higher of cash generating unit's fair value less cost to sell and value in use.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and risk specified to the asset. In determining fair value less cost to sell, recent market
transaction are taken into account. If no such transaction can be identified, an appropriate
valuation model is used.
Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except for properties previously revalued with the revaluation
taken to OCI. For such properties, the impairment is recognised in OCI up to the amount of any
previous revaluation.
When the Company considers that there are no realistic prospects of recovery of the asset, the
relevant amounts are written off. If the amount of impairment loss subsequently decreases and
the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, then the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

J Trade receivables
A receivable is classified as a ‘trade receivable’ if it is in respect of the amount due on account of
goods sold or services rendered in the normal course of business. Trade receivables are
recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR
method, less provision for impairment.

K Trade payables
A payable is classified as a ‘trade payable’ if it is in respect of the amount due on account of
goods purchased or services received in the normal course of business. These amounts
represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of the
financial year which are unpaid. These amounts are unsecured and are usually settled as per the
payment terms stated in the contract. Trade and other payables are presented as current
liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are
recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR
method.

L Earnings Per Share



Swadeshi Industries & Leasing Limited
CIN :  L45209MH1983PLC031246

Accompanying notes to the financial statements for the Period ended March 31, 2025
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
the equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the period and for all periods presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than
the conversion of potential equity shares, that have changed the number of equity shares
outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable
to the equity shareholders of the Company and weighted average number of equity shares
considered for deriving basic earnings per equity share and also the weighted average number of
equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.
The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity
shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. the average market value of the outstanding equity
shares).

M Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprises of cash at banks and on hand and
short-term deposits with an original maturity of three month or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

N Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with
the borrowing of funds. Also, the EIR amortisation is included in finance costs.

Borrowing costs relating to acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset which
takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are added to the cost of such
asset to the extent they relate to the period till such assets are ready to be put to use. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they
occur. 

O Revenue Recognition:

i) Revenue is recognized when all significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods are
passed on to the buyer and no significant uncertainty exists as to its realization or collection.

ii) Revenue from disposal of properties is recognized on legal completion of the contract. Where
properties are under development, revenue is recognized when significant risk and rewards of
ownership and effective control of the real estate have been transferred to the buyer. If the
revenue recognition criteria have been met before construction is complete then obligation is
recognized for the cost to complete the construction at the same time as the sale is recognized. 

iii) Rent Income is recognized on the basis of term with lessee. 
iv) Interest Income is recognized on a time proportion basis by reference to the principal outstanding

and at the interest rate applicable. Share of profit/ Loss from partnership firm recognised on the
basis of confirmation from partnership firm. 
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Accompanying notes to the financial statements for the Period ended March 31, 2025
P Foreign Currency Transactions:

a Initial Recognition
Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the
foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign
currency at the date of the transaction. However, for practical reasons, the Company uses a
monthly average rate if the average rate approximate the actual rate at the date of the
transactions.

b Conversion
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are reported using the closing
rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost
denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction.

c Treatment of Exchange Difference
Exchange differences arising on settlement/ restatement of short-term foreign currency monetary
assets and liabilities of the Company are recognised as income or expense in the Statement of
Profit and Loss except those arising from investment in Non Integral operations.

Q Inventories
Inventories are valued at cost or net realizable value whichever is lower. Cost of property under
construction held as inventory includes cost of purchases, construction cost, and other cost
incurred in bringing the properties to their present location and condition

R Provisions and Contingent Liabilities and Assets: 
A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of obligation. Provisions (excluding gratuity and compensated absences) are determined
based on management's estimate required to settle the obligation at the Balance Sheet date. In
case the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost. These are reviewed at each
Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current management estimates.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events,
whose existence would be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. A contingent liability also
arises, in rare cases, where a liability cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured
reliably.
Contingent asset is not recongnised unless it becomes virtually certain that an flow of econimic
benefits will arise. 

S Employee Benefits
i) Defined Contribution Plan

Contributions to defined contribution schemes such as provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, labour welfare are charged as an expense based on the amount of contribution
required to be made as and when services are rendered by the employees. The above benefits
are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Company has no further obligations
beyond the monthly contributions.

ii) Defined Benefit Plan 
The Company also provides for gratuity which is a defined benefit plan, the liabilities of which is
determined based on valuations, as at the balance sheet date, made by an independent actuary
using the projected unit credit method. Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and
losses, in respect of gratuity are recognised in the OCI, in the period in which they occur. Re-
measurement recognised in OCI are not reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss in
subsequent periods. Past service cost is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the
year of plan amendment or curtailment. The classification of the Company’s obligation into current
and non-current is as per the actuarial valuation report. 

iii) Leave entitlement and compensated absences
Accumulated leave which is expected to be utilised within next twelve months, is treated as short-
term employee benefit. Leave entitlement, other than short term compensated absences, are
provided based on a actuarial valuation, similar to that of gratuity benefit. Re-measurement,
comprising of actuarial gains and losses, in respect of leave entitlement are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they occur.

iv) Short-term Benefits
Short-term employee benefits such as salaries, wages, performance incentives etc. are
recognised as expenses at the undiscounted amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss of the
period in which the related service is rendered. Expenses on non-accumulating compensated
absences is recognised in the period in which the absences occur.

v) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised as an expense as and when incurred.

T Accounting for Taxes of Income:-
i) Current Taxes 

Current income tax is recognised based on the estimated tax liability computed after taking credit
for allowances and exemptions in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961. Current income tax
assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are
enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date. 

ii) Deferred Taxes
Deferred tax is determined by applying the Balance Sheet approach. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recognised for all deductible temporary differences between the financial statements’
carrying amount of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax base. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are measured using the enacted tax rates or tax rates that are substantively
enacted at the Balance Sheet date. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in
tax rates is recognised in the period that includes the enactment date. Deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet
date to reassess realisation. 
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Accompanying notes to the financial statements for the Period ended March 31, 2025
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to
offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

iii) Minimum Alternative Tax
MAT is recongnised as deferred Tax Assets in the Balance Sheet when the asset can be
measured reliably and it is probable that the furure econimic benefit associated with asset will be
realised 
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3: Property, Plant and Equipment
(Amount in Rs.)

As At As At As At As At As At As At
01.04.2024 31.03.2025 01.04.2024 31.03.2025 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Land 3,52,50,000.00      -                        -3,52,50,000.00   -                        -                    -                           -                          -                        -                     -                        -                    -                           -                           3,52,50,000.00      
Furniture & Fixtures 2,58,000.00           -                        -                          -                        -                    2,58,000.00           1,89,722.00           18,162.00            -                     -                        -                    2,07,884.00           50,116.00               68,278.00               
Computer 94,143.00               -                        -                          -                        -                    94,143.00               83,674.00              4,188.00              -                     -                        -                    87,862.00               6,281.00                 10,469.00               
Mobile (Office Equipments) 62,382.00            62,382.00               -                          5,854.00              5,854.00                 56,528.00               -                           

Total (Rs.) 3,56,02,143.00     62,382.00            -3,52,50,000.00   -                        -                    4,14,525.00           2,73,396.00           28,204.00            -                     -                        -                    3,01,600.00           1,12,925.00           3,53,28,747.00     

  As At As At As At As At As At As At
01.04.2023 31.03.2024 01.04.2023 31.03.2024 31.03.2024 31.03.2023

Land 3,52,50,000.00      -                        -                          -                        -                    3,52,50,000.00      -                          -                        -                     -                        -                    -                           3,52,50,000.00      3,52,50,000.00      
Furniture & Fixtures 2,58,000.00           -                        -                          -                        -                    2,58,000.00           1,64,978.00           24,744.00            -                     -                        -                    1,89,722.00           68,278.00               93,022.00               
Computer 94,143.00               -                        -                          -                        -                    94,143.00               76,695.00              6,979.00              -                     -                        -                    83,674.00               10,469.00               17,448.00               

Total (Rs.) 3,56,02,143.00     -                        -                          -                        -                    3,56,02,143.00     2,41,673.00           31,723.00            -                     -                        -                    2,73,396.00           3,53,28,747.00     3,53,60,470.00     

Note 3: Property, Plant and Equipment and Right-of-Use Assets

Details of Assets Net Block
Additions Disposals Disposals AdjustmentsAdditionsAdjustments  Revaluation 

changes 
 Revaluation 

changes 

Gross Block Accumulated Depreciation

Details of Assets Gross Block Accumulated Depreciation Net Block
Additions Disposals Adjustments  Revaluation 

changes 
Additions Disposals Adjustments  Revaluation 

changes 
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(Amount in Rs.)
As at As at

31.03.2025 31.03.2024

22,894.00                     

6,92,669.00                  6,87,374.00                

-                                 -50,492.00                  
-                                

7,15,563.00                  6,36,882.00                

As at As at
31.03.2025 31.03.2024

-                                 -                                
-                                 -                                
-                                 -                                

5,27,72,015.00             13,11,859.00              

(5,146.00)                      -                               

5,27,66,869.00            13,11,859.00              

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED March 31, 2025

i. Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

Unsecured

Total

ii. Others

Total

       i. Considered good
      ii. Considered doubtful

       i. Considered good
      ii. Considered doubtful
   Less : Provision for Doubtful Debts and disallowances

   Less : Allowance for doubtful debts (Expected Credit Loss Allowance)

Note 5: Trade Receivables

Particulars

Secured

Deferred tax liability

Particulars

Deferred tax asset
i. Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
ii. Retirement benefits
iii. Others

Note 4: Deferred Tax Assets (Net)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED March 31, 2025

(Amount in Rs.)

Less than 6 months to More than 
6 months 1 Year 3 Years

Undisputed trade receivables - considered good
-                           -                           5,14,60,156            -                                 -                                -                               13,11,859               

5,27,72,015            

Undisputed trade receivables - considered doubtful
-                           -                           -                           -                                 -                                -                               -                           

-                           

Disputed trade receivables - considered good -                           -                           -                           -                                 -                                -                               -                           -                           

Disputed trade receivables - considered doubtful
-                           -                           -                           -                                 -                                -                               -                           

-                           

Total -                           -                           5,14,60,156            -                                 -                                -                               13,11,859               5,27,72,015            

(Amount in Rs.)

Less than 6 months to More than 
6 months 1 Year 3 Years

Undisputed trade receivables - considered good -                           -                           -                           -                                 -                                -                               13,11,859               13,11,859               

Undisputed trade receivables - considered doubtful -                           -                           -                           -                                 -                                -                               -                           -                           

Disputed trade receivables - considered good -                           -                           -                           -                                 -                                -                               -                           -                           

Disputed trade receivables - considered doubtful -                           -                           -                           -                                 -                                -                               -                           -                           

Total -                           -                           -                           -                                 -                                -                               13,11,859               13,11,859               

Note 5.3: Movement in Allowance for Expected Credit Loss (₹ in Lakhs)

Particulars Amount
Opening balance of loss allowance 3,31,190.00            
Add: Provision on old balances (pre-takeover) -                           
Add: Provision on new debtors (0.01%) 5,146.00                 
Less: Reversal/Utilisation -                           
Closing balance of loss allowance 3,36,336.00            

Note 5.4 : Disclosure of Trade Receivables as at 31st March 2025 (₹ in Lakhs)
Particulars Amount
Trade Receivables – considered good (current year) 5,14,60,156            
Trade Receivables – credit impaired (old balances – pre 
takeover)

16,43,049               

Less: Allowance for Expected Credit Loss 3,36,336                 
Total Trade Receivables (Net) 5,27,66,869            

Note 6: Cash and Cash Equivalents
(Amount in Rs.)

As at As at
31.03.2025 31.03.2024

1,04,147.00                  1,33,319.00                
-                                

55,132.00                     65,530.00                    
-                                 -                                

1,59,279.00                  1,98,849.00                

Note 7: Loans- Current (Amount in Rs.)
As at As at

31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Loans & Advances (Asset) 1,89,71,074.00             3,83,22,226.00           

1,89,71,074.00            3,83,22,226.00           

Note 8: Other Financial Assets (Amount in Rs.)
As at As at

31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Loans & Advances (Asset) 2,65,00,000.00             -                                

2,65,00,000.00            -                                

iii. Cash on hand

Note 5.1: Ageing of current trade receivables outstanding as at March 31, 2025 is as follows:

Particulars

(Unsecured, Considered good unless otherwise specified)

Total

Total

Particulars

(Unsecured, Considered good unless otherwise specified)

Total

iv. Remittances in transit

 - In current accounts

Total
1 - 2 Years 2 - 3 Years

Note 5.2: Ageing of current trade receivables outstanding as at March 31, 2024 is as follows:

Particulars Unbilled Not Due

Outstanding for the following  period from the due date of payment / date of transaction, as the case 
may be Total

1 - 2 Years 2 - 3 Years

Particulars Unbilled Not Due

Outstanding for the following  period from the due date of payment / date of transaction, as the case 
may be

ii. Cheques on hand

Particulars

i. Balances with banks

Trade receivables of ₹16,43,049 pertain to the business prior to takeover of the Company. An allowance of ₹3,31,190 has been created against these balances, and the net amount of ₹13,11,859 is considered recoverable. 
Management is pursuing recovery; in case of non-recovery, the balances may be written off in subsequent periods.
On current year debtors, the Company has applied its policy of providing for ECL at 0.01% of outstanding receivables, amounting to ₹5,146, which has been recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED March 31, 2025
Note 9: Other current assets

(Amount in Rs.)
As at As at

31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Income Tax Refund Receivable 11,70,909.00                3,25,100.00                
Advance to supplier 36,00,000.00                1,78,10,567.00           
GST Credit Balance -                                 3,78,833.00                
GST ITC Receivable 2,06,036.00                
Prepaid Expenses -                                
Telephone Security Deposit 1,000.00                      

47,70,909.00                1,87,21,536.00           

(Amount in Rs.)

Number Amount (Rs.) Number Amount (Rs.)

1,25,00,000            12,50,00,000.00    1,25,00,000                  12,50,00,000.00         

1,25,00,000            12,50,00,000.00    1,25,00,000                  12,50,00,000.00         

1,08,17,950            10,81,79,500.00    1,08,17,950                  10,81,79,500.00         

1,08,17,950            10,81,79,500.00    1,08,17,950                  10,81,79,500.00         

Particulars As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024

Number Number
1,08,17,950            1,08,17,950            

-                           -                           
-                           -                           

1,08,17,950            1,08,17,950            -                          

No. of Shares 
held

% of 
Holding 

No. of Shares held % of 
Holding 

37,83,571               34.97%                                     -                                     -   
27,30,850                     25.24%

37,83,571               34.97% 27,30,850                     25.24%

Note 11: Other Equity

As at As at
31.03.2025 31.03.2024

12,15,000.00                12,15,000.00              
-                                 -                                
-                                 -                                

12,15,000.00                12,15,000.00              

12,32,400.00                12,32,400.00              
Add: Derecognition of Leave Encashment Obligation -                                 -                                

-                                 -                                
12,32,400.00                12,32,400.00              

-3,27,75,720.00           -3,21,61,929.00          
1,02,85,766.00             -6,13,791.00               

(+) Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) For the current year -                                 -                                
-2,24,89,954.00           -3,27,75,720.00          

-2,24,89,954.00           -3,27,75,720.00          

14,80,125.00                14,80,125.00              
Add: Derecognition of Leave Encashment Obligation -                                 -                                

-                                 -                                
14,80,125.00                14,80,125.00              

-1,85,62,429.00           -2,88,48,195.00          
Nature and Purpose of Reserves
i. General Reserve

ii.) Capital Reserve

iii.) Forfieted Shares
The Amount received in shares forfieted.

Note 10: Share Capital

 As at 31.03.2025 

Authorised Share Capital
 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each

Particulars
 As at 31.03.2024 

Terms / Rights attached to Equity shares:

Note 10.2 Shareholders holding more than 5% Equity Shares

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital

Total

As at 31.03.2024As at 31.03.2025

 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each

Note 9.1 Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

Total

Shares outstanding at the end of the year

Closing Balance (A)

Opening Balance

Name of Shareholder 

Add : Premium on shares issued during the year

Nageshwar Power Pvt. Ltd (Formerly known as Chin Info Tech Pvt. Ltd.)

Less: Utilised / transferred during the year

Opening balance

Less: Appropriations

Particulars

(a) General Reserves

Total

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/- per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible 
to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

(c) Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss (Retained Earnings)

(+) Net Profit/(Loss) For the current year

(b) Capital Reserve
Opening Balance

Less: Utilised / transferred during the year
Closing Balance (B)

Jayshree Radheshyam Sharma

Particulars

(Unsecured, Considered good unless otherwise specified)

Shares Issued during the year
Shares bought back during the year

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 

Net Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss (C)
           Dividend

(d) Forfieted Shares
Opening Balance

Less: Utilised / transferred during the year
Closing Balance (D)

The Company has transferred a portion of the net profit of the Company before declaring dividend to
general reserve pursuant to the earlier provisions of Companies Act 1956. Mandatory transfer to general
reserve is not required.

The Companies Act, 2013 requires the company to create capital reserve based on statutory requirement.
This reserve is not available for capitalisation/declaration of dividend/ share buy-back.

TOTAL (A+B+C)

Balance available for appropriation
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED March 31, 2025

As at As at
31.03.2025 31.03.2024

(a) Aarya Financial Service 1,50,000.00                  -                                

1,50,000.00                  -                                

Note 12: Borrowings

Particulars

Total
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED March 31, 2025

As at As at
31.03.2025 31.03.2024

-                                 -                                
1,19,44,514.00             49,30,036.00              

1,19,44,514.00            49,30,036.00              Total

(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro & small enterprises

Trade Payables

Note 13: Trade Payables

(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises

Particulars
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED March 31, 2025

As at As at
31.03.2025 31.03.2024

-                                 -                               

-                                 -                               

-                                -                               

Undisputed Dues:
MSME -                           -                           -                           -                                 -                                -                               -                           
Others -                           1,14,97,470.00      3,11,546.00                  -                                1,35,498.00                1,19,44,514.00      

Disputed Dues:
MSME -                           -                           -                           -                                 -                                -                               -                           
Others -                           -                           -                           -                                 -                                -                               -                           

Total -                           -                           1,14,97,470.00      3,11,546.00                  -                                1,35,498.00                1,19,44,514.00      

Undisputed Dues:
MSME -                           -                           -                           -                                 -                                -                               -                           
Others -                           2,48,957.00            44,86,877.00                8,704.00                      1,85,498.00                49,30,036.00          

Disputed Dues:
MSME -                           -                           -                           -                                 -                                -                               -                           
Others -                           -                           -                           -                                 -                                -                               -                           

Total -                           -                           2,48,957.00            44,86,877.00                8,704.00                      1,85,498.00                49,30,036.00          

As at As at
31.03.2025 31.03.2024

(a) GST Payable 3,31,331.00                  2,352.00                      
(b) Provision for Income Tax 14,86,626.00                
(b) Expenses Payable 4,04,300.00                  5,09,500.00                
(c) Professional Tax Payable 43,600.00                     38,600.00                    
(d) TDS Payable 19,177.00                     12,306.00                    
(e) Current Maturitiy of Long Term Loan -                                 -                                

22,85,034.00                5,62,758.00                

As at As at
31.03.2025 31.03.2024

(d) Advance received on Land Sale -                                 96,96,000.00              

-                                 96,96,000.00              

Total

Total

(d) Amount of interest due and payable for the period (where the principal has been paid but interest under the
MSMED Act, 2006 not paid)

(c) Interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006, along with the amount of the payment
made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the year

Note 13.2: Ageing for trade payables outstanding as at March 31, 2025 is as follows:

Particulars
1 - 2 Years 2 - 3 Years

Particulars  More than 
3 Years 

Note 13.3: Ageing for trade payables outstanding as at March 31, 2024 is as follows:

-                                 -                               

(e) Interest accrued and remaining unpaid

Total

1 - 2 Years 2 - 3 Years

Notes: 
1. The management has not made any provision of interest in the Books of Accounts based on the balance confirmation certificate obtained from the vendor.

-                                 -                               

(f) Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the
interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible
expenditure under Section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006

Total

Outstanding for the following  period from the due date of payment / date of transaction, as the case may be
 More than 

3 Years 
 Less than 

1 Year 
 Not Due  Unbilled 

Particulars

Outstanding for the following  period from the due date of payment / date of transaction, as the case may be

 Unbilled  Not Due 

Note 14: Other Financial Liabilities- Current

Particulars

Total

 Less than 
1 Year 

Note 15: Other Current Liabilities

(a) Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier under MSMED 
(b) Interest due on principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier under MSMED

Particulars

Refer Note 1

Note 13.1: Details of the dues to Micro and Small, as defined in the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, based on available
information with the Company are as under:



DETAILS OF SUNDRY CREDITORS

LESS THAN 1 YEAR
APAR INDUSTRIES 48,58,736.00      
JIGAR TUBE PVT LTD -864.00               
KBS INDUSTRIES 32,50,000.00      
MEHTA TUBE LTD -1,331.00            
SHRI SHAKTI INDUTRIES 31,90,473.00      
SUNLITE RECYCLING IND PVT LTD
TRISHLA STEEL AND ENGINEERING CO
MUFG INTIME INDIA PVT LTD 52,458.00           
NSDL EVOTING 64,390.00           
NSDL CUSTODIAL FEES 48,600.00           
NSDL FILM 10,800.00           
RAJAL STATIONARY
SINDHU NAIR AND ASSOCIATES
SK MAILING SERVICES
TARUN ADVERTISING 24,208.00           

1,14,97,470.00  

1-2 YEARS
TARUN ADVERTISING 3,11,546.00        335754 311546

3,11,546.00        
2-3 YEARS
TARUN ADVERTISING -                       
MORE THAN 3 YEARS
MAGIC TOUCH CORPORATE SERVICE 7,500.00             
MAU PRINTING 1,27,998.00        

1,35,498.00        

LOANS -CURRENT
AN ENTERPRISE 24,25,312.00      
BSE LIMITED 19,824.00           
DOLPHIN GLOBAL AVIATION 55,00,000.00      
GAURAV COTTON MILLS 9,50,000.00        
MANESH D CHAVAN 8,13,815.00        
ORACLE REALTY DEVELOPERS 5,00,000.00        
RAMESH DOBARIA 11,000.00           
SITARAM DHONDI CHAVAN 45,51,123.00      
SHREYA MULTI TRADER 42,00,000.00      

1,89,71,074.00  

ADVANCE TO SUPPLIERS



MONIKA'S 36,00,000.00      
JANS ELECTROMATE

36,00,000.00     



24208
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(Amount in Rs.)
Note 16: Revenue from Operations

Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024

15,89,56,031.00    2,46,40,346.00     

15,89,56,031.00    2,46,40,346.00     

Note 17: Other Income

Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024

26,54,013.00         14,01,278.00         
21,132.00               84,116.00              

60,03,790.00         
86,78,935.00         14,85,394.00        

Note 18: Purchase of Stock in Trade

Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024

15,29,51,678.00    2,44,93,447.00     
15,29,51,678.00    2,44,93,447.00     

Note 19: Employee Benefit Expenses  

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED March 31, 2025

Total
(c ) Gain on Sale of Land

Particulars

Particulars

Total

(a) Revenue from Sale of Products

Particulars

(a) Interest Income
(b) Sundry Balances written off

Purchases
Total
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(Amount in Rs.)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED March 31, 2025

Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024

13,15,700.00         3,08,000.00           
3,00,000.00           3,00,000.00           

16,15,700.00         6,08,000.00           

Note 20: Finance Cost

Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024

7,185.00                 2,552.00                

7,185.00                 2,552.00                

Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Auditors Remenuration 1,25,000.00           70,000.00              
Packing and Forwarding Expenses (Net) -                           10,997.00              
Custodial Fees 98,702.00               1,00,231.00           
Electric Expenses 5,220.00                 -                          
Software Expenses 14,250.00               -                          
BSE Listing Fee 4,87,280.00           6,71,000.00           
Professional Fees 78,231.00               2,23,876.00           
Newspaper Publishing Expenses 1,19,140.00           1,35,930.00           
Office Expenses 2,400.00                 -                          
Office Rent 48,000.00               24,000.00              
Postage and Courier 15,135.00               15,490.00              
Printing and Stationary 1,08,500.00           96,080.00              
Professional Tax -                           2,500.00                
ROC Fees 3,600.00                 12,950.00              
RTA - Service Charges 1,42,941.00           1,70,690.00           
Transport Expenses 19,291.00               49,723.00              
Allowance for Expected Credit Loss 5,146.00                 -                          
Other Expenses 1,000.00                 20,342.00              

12,73,836.00         16,03,809.00        

Particulars

Salaries and Wages

Total

Director Remuneration

(a) Interest, bank Charges & bank commission

Total

Note 21: Other Expenses

Particulars

Particulars

Total



Swadeshi Industries & Leasing Limited F.Y. 2024-25
CIN : L45209MH1983PLC031246

(Amount in Rs.)

Note 22: Earnings per share

Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Profit after tax as per statement of profit and loss 1,02,85,766.00    -6,13,791.00        
Less: Preference Share Dividend and tax thereon -                         -                         
Profit including exceptional items attributable to Equity Shares 1,02,85,766.00    -6,13,791.00        
Less : Exceptional and extra-ordinary items -                         -                         
Profit excluding exceptional and extra-ordinary items attributable to Equity Shares 1,02,85,766.00    -6,13,791.00        

Weighted average number of equity shares for basic EPS (in No.) 1,08,17,950          1,08,17,950          
Weighted average number of equity shares for diluted EPS (in No.) 1,08,17,950          1,08,17,950          

Face value of equity shares (in Rs.) 10.00                     10.00                     
Earnings per share Basic (in Rs.) 0.95                       -0.06                      
Earnings per share Diluted (in Rs.) 0.95                       -0.06                      

Note 23: Regrouping / Reclassification

Note 24: Segment Reporting
Company is engaged in the business of Trading of various items and incidental activities thereto which, in the context of Ind AS 108 
on Operating Segments, constitutes a single reportable segment.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED March 31, 2025

Particulars

Adjusted profit excluding exceptional items and extra-ordinary items attributable to Equity
Shares for calculation of Diluted Earnings per Share

Previous year’s figures have been regrouped & rearranged, wherever  necessary to correspond with the current year’s classification.

1,02,85,766.00    -6,13,791.00        
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Note 23 : Fair value measurement
Financial Instruments by category (Amount in Rs.)

FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Cost FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Cost
Financial Assets
Investments
Equity Instruments                                 -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -   
Trade and Other Receivables        5,27,66,869.00            13,11,859.00 
Loans        1,89,71,074.00        3,83,22,226.00 
Cash and Cash Equivalents              1,59,279.00              1,98,849.00 
Other Current Financial Assets                                 -                                   -   
Total Financial Assets                                 -                                   -          7,18,97,222.00                                 -                                   -          3,98,32,934.00 

Financial Liabilities
Borrowings                                 -                                   -   
Trade payables        1,19,44,514.00            49,30,036.00 
Lease Liabilities
Other Financial Liabilities            22,85,034.00              5,62,758.00 
Total Financial Liabilities                                 -                                   -          1,42,29,548.00                                 -                                   -              54,92,794.00 

Fair Value of Financial Assets measured at amortised cost:

Note 24 :  Financial Risk Management

Risk
Risk Exposure 
arising from Measurement

Management of 
risk

Credit Risk Cash and Cash 
Equivalents, Trade 
Receivables, 
Financial Assets 
measured at 
Amortised Cost.

Ageing Analysis, 
Credit Ratings

Diversification of 
Bank Deposits, 
Credit Limits and 
Regular 
Monitoring.

Liquidity Risk Borrowings and 
Other Liabilities

"Rolling Cash Flow 
Forecasts"

Availability of 
surplus Cash, 
Committed Credit 
Lines and 
Borrowing Facilities

A. Credit Risk

The Company’s activities expose it to business risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. In order to minimise any adverse effects on the financial 
performance, the Company’s risk management is carried out by a corporate treasury and corporate finance department under policies approved by the board 
of directors and top management. Company’s treasury identifies, evaluates and mitigates financial risks in close cooperation with the Company’s operating 
units. The board provides guidance for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas. The table below gives the summarised view of the 
financial risk managed by the Company :

Credit risk is the risk of incurring a loss that may arise from a borrower or debtor failing to make required payments. Credit risk arises mainly from outstanding 
receivables, cash and cash equivalents, employee advances and security deposits. The Company manages and analyses the credit risk for each of its new clients 
before standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered. There are no significant concentrations of credit risk, whether through exposure to 
individual customers, specific industry sectors and/or regions.

i. The Carrying amounts of Trade and Other Receivables and Cash and Cash equivalents are cosndered to be the same as their fair values, due to their short 
term nature. The Carrying amounts of loans are considered to be close to their fair values. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED March 31, 2025

ii. Financials Liabilities measured at amortised cost: The Carrying amount of Trade and Other Payables are considered to be the same as their fair values due to 
their short term nature.

Particulars
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024



 i. Actual or expected significant adverse changes in business,  ,
ii. Actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of the counterparty,
iii. Financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant change to the counterparty’s ability to meet its obligations
 iv. Significant changes in the value of the collateral supporting the obligation or in the quality of the third party guarantees or credit enhancements.

B. Liquidity risk

Financing arrangements 
The Company had access to bank overdraft facilities. These facilities may be drawn at any time and may be terminated by the bank without notice.

C. Interest rate risk

Exposure to interest rate risk
The Company’s deposits and Investments are all at fixed rate and carried at amortised cost. They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk as defined in Ind 
AS 107, since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because a change in market interest rates.

Credit risk arises from the possibility that the counter party may not be able to settle their obligations as agreed. To manage this, the Company periodically 
assess financial reliability of customers, taking into account the financial condition, current economic trends, and analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of 
accounts receivable. Individual risk limits are set accordingly

The Company considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing 
basis through out each reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk the Company compares the risk of default occurring on 
asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers reasonable and supportive looking forward information 
such as:

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectations of recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage in a repayment plan with the Company. 
Where loans or receivables have been written off, the Company continues to engage in enforcement activity to attempt to recover the receivable due. Where 
recoveries are made, these are recognized in profit or loss.

The Company measures the expected credit loss of trade receivables and loan from individual customers based on historical trend, industry practices and the 
business environment in which the entity operates.Loss rates are based on actual credit loss experience and past trends. Based on the historical data, loss on 
collection of receivable is not material hence no additional provision considered.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral obligations without incurring unacceptable losses. 
The Company’s objective is to, at all times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on  the basis of expected cash flows. The Company’s 
liquidity management policy involves projecting cash flows and  considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet these, monitoring balance sheet 
liquidity ratios against  internal requirements and maintaining debt financing plans.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Since the 



Swadeshi Industries & Leasing Limited
CIN : L45209MH1983PLC031246

(Amount in Rs.)
Note 25: Taxation
25.1 Income Tax Expenses

Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Current Tax
Current Tax on Profit for the year 6,28,084.00              -                            
Capital Gains tax on sale of Land 8,58,542.00              -                            

Total Current Tax Expense 14,86,626.00            -                           

Deferred Tax
Decrease /(Increase) in Deferred Tax Assets (6,92,669.00)             -                            
Increase / (Decrease) in Deferred Tax Liabilities (73,386.00)                -                            
Total Deferred Tax Expenses/(Benefits) (7,66,055.00)             -                           

Income Tax Expense 7,20,571.00              -                           

Income Tax Expense Charged/(Credited) to :
Profit and Loss account
Current Tax Expenses 14,86,626.00            -                            
Deferred Tax Expenses (73,386.00)                -                            

14,13,240.00            -                           

Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to Profit and Loss

Current Tax Expenses
-                             -                           

14,13,240.00            -                           

25.2 Reconciliation of Tax Expense and Accounting Profit multiplied by tax rate applicable: 

Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Profit/ (loss) from Operations before Income Tax Expense 1,17,58,363.00         (6,13,791.00)           
Less: Gains on sale of Agricultural Land (60,03,790.00)           
Less: Interest on Loans and Advances (26,54,013.00)           
Net Profit/ (loss) from Operations before Income Tax Expense 31,00,560.00            
Add: Depreciation as per Companies Act 28,204.00                  
Less: Depreciation as per Income Tax Act -24,476.00                 3,728.00                    

31,04,288.00            
Less: Brought Fowrwards Loss 31,04,288.00            
Business Income taxable as per Income Tax -                             
Interest from Loans and Advances 26,54,013.00            
Less: Brought Fowrwards Loss ( Depreciation) 1,58,446.00              

24,95,567.00            
Total Income 24,95,567.00            
Corporate Tax Rate as per Income Tax Act, 1961 25.17% 26.00%
Tax on Accounting Profit 6,28,084.00              (1,59,585.66)           
Tax on Capital Gains 8,58,542.00              
Effect of Depreciation -                              -                            
Effect of Non Deductible expenses -                              -                            

Income Tax expense 14,86,626.00             -1,59,585.66            
Effective Tax rate 12.64% 26.00%

25.3 Deferred Tax Assets (Net)
As At As At

31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Deferred Tax Assets
MAT Credit Entitlement
MAT Credit Entitlement AY 2014/15 -                             2,95,784.00            
MAT Credit Entitlement AY 2015/16 -                             3,91,590.00            
Carried Forward Business Losses 6,92,669.00              
Property Plant and Equipment 22,894.00                  
Total Deferred Tax Assets 7,15,563.00              6,87,374.00            

Deferred Tax Liability
Property Plant and Equipment -                             50,492.00                
Total Deferred Tax Liability -                             50,492.00               
Net Deferred Tax Asset 7,15,563.00              6,36,882.00            

Note 25.4 Movement in Deferred Tax during the year ended March 31, 2025

Particulars Opening Balance Recognition in 
Profit or Loss

Recognition in 
Other 
Comprehensive 
Income

Closing Balance

Property, Plant And Equipment (PPE) (50,492.00)                73,386.00                  -                            22,894.00                
Carried Forward Business Loss of Earlier Years including 
MAT 6,87,374.00              5,295.00                    6,92,669.00            

-                             -                            
Total 6,36,882.00              78,681.00                 -                           7,15,563.00            

Note 25.4 Movement in Deferred Tax during the year ended March 31, 2024
Particulars Opening Balance Recognition in 

Profit or Loss
Recognition in 
Other 
Comprehensive 
Income

Closing Balance

Property, Plant And Equipment (PPE) (50,492.00)                -                             (50,492.00)              
MAT Credit Entitlement AY 2014/15 2,95,784.00              2,95,784.00            
MAT Credit Entitlement AY 2015/16 3,91,590.00              3,91,590.00            
Total 6,36,882.00              -                             -                           6,36,882.00            

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED March 31, 2025

Particulars

Total

Particulars

Particulars



WORKING OF DEFERRED TAX ASSET / LIABILITY AS PER IND AS 12

Particulars As per Books (WDV) As per IT (WDV) Temporary Difference
Fixed Assets 1,12,925.00                  2,03,890.00         -90,965.00                        
Tax Losses Carried Forward -                                 27,52,181.00       -27,52,181.00                   

Notes:

Positive difference (Book WDV > IT WDV) = Deferred Tax Liability

Negative difference = Deferred Tax Asset

Tax rate used: effective corporate tax rate (e.g., 25.168% for 22% regime + surcharge + cess)

Round-off and club assets/liabilities if numerous.



Tax Rate (%) DTA/DTL (₹)
25.17              -22,894.00        
25.17              -6,92,669.00     
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(Amount in Rs.)
Note 26: Related Party Disclosures Pursuant to Ind AS 24

C. Key Management Personnel 1. Jayshree Sharma Executive Director
2. Lalkrishna Sharma Executive Director
3. Indira Dhariwal Director
4. Krishna Kamal Kishor Vyas Director
5. CS Shruti Jain Company Secretary
6. Vikas Jain Compliance Officer & CFO
7. Nitesh Kumar Executive Director

Note 26.2: Transaction with Related Parties: (Amount in Rs.)

Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Remuneration of KMP and their relatives
89,700.00                    3,00,000.00                        

3,00,000.00                 3,00,000.00                        
Transaction with Associate Companies & KMP
Aarya Financial Services Unsecured Loans Accepted 1,50,000.00                 
Nageshwar Power Pvt. Ltd. Unsecured Loans Accepted 8,53,248.00                        
Nageshwar Power Pvt. Ltd. Unsecured Loans Repaid 9,51,328.00                        
Park View Developers Net Capital Introduced in Partnership 

firm up to
30.11.2022 and balance of rs 
10175478.62 is transfer to
loan a/c

-                                -                                        

Park View Developers Profit/(Loss) from Partnership Firm -                                -                                        
Park View Developers Loan Repayment Received 1,01,75,478.00                  

Note 26.3: Outstanding Balances with Related Parties: (Amount in Rs.)
As At As At

31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Shruti Jain 94,300.00                    1,51,500.00                        

-                                2,08,900.00                        
Nageshwar Power Pvt Ltd -                                97,900.00                           

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED March 31, 2025

Note 26.1: List of Related Parties:

Vikas Jain

A. Companies where control exists-
Subsidiaries

B. Entities in which Key Managerial 
Personnel can exercise Significant 
Influence

Particulars

Particulars

Vikas Jain
Shruti Jain
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Note 27: Capital Management

Note 28: Contingent Liability

Note 29 :

Note 30:

Note 31:

Note 32:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED March 31, 2025

Previous year figures have been regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary to confirm with the current year
presentation.

The Company aims to manage its capital efficiently so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to
optimise returns to its shareholders. Management monitors the return on capital as well as the debt equity ratio and
make necessary adjustments in the capital structure for the development of the business. The capital structure of the
Company is based on management's judgement of the appropriate balance of key elements in order to meet its
strategic and day - to - day needs. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the
amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
Gearing Ratio- There is no Debts in the company as on 30.09.2025and 31.03.2025 .Thus ,Gearing Ratio is Nil as on
30.09.2025 and 31.03.2025

There are no contingent liabilities in the company

There is no availability of information about the amount dues to small/micro undertaking, we are unable to comment
that the interest if any is due to such undertaking or not.

Balances are relied upon as per books of accounts wherever the confirmations from debtors /creditors /Loans
/Advances are not available

As certified by the Management there is no obligation in respect of gratuity and leave encashment during the year
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Note 33: Disclosure of Analytical Ratios
(Amount in Rs.)

Sr. No. Ratio Numerator
Amount as on March 

31, 2025
Amount as on 

March 31, 2024
Denominator

Amount as on March 31, 
2025

Amount as on 
March 31, 2024

Ratio for Current 
period

Ratio for 
Previous
period

% variance
Reason for variance

1 Current Ratio Current Assets 10,31,68,131.00           5,85,54,470.00     Current Liabilities 1,42,29,548.00                       1,51,88,794.00     7.25                        3.86        88.07% Increase in Current Liabilities mainly other 
current liabilities.

2 Debt Equity Ratio Total Debt Shareholder's Equity
Total Outside Liabilities -                                -                        Total Shareholders Equity 8,96,17,071.00                       7,93,31,305.00     -                          -          0.00% No Outside Liabilities

3 Debt Service Coverage Ratio Earnings available for debt service 1,17,86,567.00             -5,82,068.00         Debt Service -                                           -                        -                          -          0.00% No Debt for the Company

Net Profit before tax + non-cash operating expenses 
like depreciation and other amortizations + 
Interest+other adjustments like loss on sale of fixed 
assets,etc.

Interest & Lease Payments + Principal Repayments

4 Return on Equity Ratio Profit for the period 1,02,85,766.00             -6,13,791.00         Avg. Shareholders Equity 8,44,74,188.00                       8,04,43,825.00     12.18% -0.76% -1695.82% Better Returns in current period

Net Profit after taxes - preference dividend (if any)
(Opening shareholders' equity + closing 
shareholders' equity) ÷ 2

5 Inventory Turnover Ratio Cost of Goods sold 15,29,51,678.00           2,44,93,447.00     Average Inventory -                                           -                        -                          -          0.00% Nil inventory at the start and end of the 
year

(Opening Stock + Purchases) – Closing Stock (Opening Stock + Closing Stock)/2

6 Trade Receivables Turnover 
Ratio

Net Credit Sales 15,89,56,031.00           2,46,40,346.00     Average Trade Receivables 2,70,39,364.00                       53,36,497.00        5.88                        4.62        27.32% Improvement in Ratio

Cerdit Sales (Beginning Trade Receivables + Ending Trade 
Receivables) / 2

-                          

7
Trade Payables Turnover 
Ratio

Net Credit Purchases 15,29,51,678.00           2,44,93,447.00     Average Trade Payables 84,37,275.00                          58,47,047.00        18.13                      4.19        332.75%
Increase in ratio due to increase in 
purchases and correspondlngly increase in 
trade payables

Annual Net Credit Purchases (Beginning Trade Payables + Ending Trade 
Payables) / 2

8 Net Capital Turnover Ratio Net Sales 15,89,56,031.00           2,46,40,346.00     Average Working Capital 8,89,38,583.00                       4,33,65,676.00     1.79                        0.57        214.55%

Improvement in ratio

Total Sales - Sales Return Current Assets - Current Liabilities

9 Net Profit Ratio Net Profit 1,02,85,766.00             -6,13,791.00         Net Sales 15,89,56,031.00                     2,46,40,346.00     6.47% -2.49% -359.77% Improvement in ratio
Profit After Tax Total sales minus Sales returns

10 Return on Capital employed EBIT 1,17,65,548.00             -6,11,239.00         Capital Employed 8,96,17,071.00                       7,93,31,305.00     13.13% -0.77% -1803.94% Improvement in ratio

Profit before Interest and Taxes Tangible Net Worth + Total Debt + Deferred Tax 
Liability

11 Return on Investment Return/Profit/Earnings 1,02,85,766.00             -6,13,791.00         Investment 8,96,17,071.00                       7,93,31,305.00     11.48% -0.77% -1583.44% Improvement in Ratio

Total Comprehensive Income Equity

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED March 31, 2025
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